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Strategic Report )
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Principal activities

~ The principal-activities of the Company mclude the prowsuon of Prime Services, Eqwty Dernvatlves and Cash
~  Equities.- : '

Business performance

The results of the Company show proﬁt after tax of £318m (2020 £275m) and total income of £724m
(2020: £651m). The Company has net assets of £1,692m (2020 £1,387m). :

Business environment -

" The year in the glObéI financial markets was characterised by heightenéd voIatiIity early.on due to COVID-19, ‘
with activity decreasmg as volatlllty stabilised. Equities markets remained buoyant through the year, as a -
number of mdnces rallied to record highs:

Barclays Group's Global Markets business acted as a market-maker and quuidity provider to clients across the
globe, playing an important role in helping them find opportunities and manage risk during a period of
continued heightenéd market volatility. In the context of a year in which trading market conditions changed
materially, the Barclays Group (‘Barclays’ or the ‘Group’) had an overall share of 4.6%® (2020: 4.8%),
maintaining its global revenue ranking at 6tha. Barclays Group continued to invest in enhénci'ng its Global
Markets digital proposition,AincIuding its electronic trading capabilities and digital self-service platform; and.
‘the financing platforms across Fixed Income and Equities.

As part of Global Markets business, the Compény provides clients and the Barclays Group businesses with
access to Equity markets in Europe and Asia through exchange memberships and clearing relationships. It
also offers secured lending and prime services to its clients and manages the market rnsk for all cash equity .
and equity denvatlve products for clients as weII as the Barclays Group

The Company’s activities are authorised and regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority (‘PRA) and the
Financial Conduct Authority (‘FCA). The Company remains subject to ongoing and significant levels of
. regulatory changé. In particular, we continué to péy close attention to.the changing landscape of prudential
requirements and supervisory expectations and changing approaches to stress testing. Tho Company

g - continues to assess and strengthen the control environment on various aspects of its’ operations.

)
Notes

2Source: Coalition Greenwich, Prellmlnary Fy21 Compeutor analysis. Based on Barclays Internal busnness structure. Analysis is based on Barclays Internal busmess structure and
internal revenues. Rank resultis agalnst the Coalition Index Banks. .

bGains in equities were offset by reduction in FICC revenue which were down in comparison with a very strong 2020

Strategy and future outlook .

The Company operates within.a complex group structure ‘where streamlining activities and improving
.efficiencies across the Barclays Group is a key' priority, for both the Company and the wider Group '
managément, as regulatory changes on CRR2 and individual leverage requirements come into effect. The
Company will continue to review its strétegy in line with the Bardays Group strategic objectivés. The
Company's overriding objective is to provide its clients with well-constructed and appropriate solutions to
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their requirements. The Company will continue to focus on geographies and prodocts where it has
competitive advantage while maintaining our client-centric approach and, in doing so, develop opportunities
to grow our business and increase returns. .

Section 172(1) statement

The Directors have acted in the way that they considered, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its sole member, Barclays Bank PLC (BBPLC), and this section forms
our Section 172 disclosure, describing how, in doing so, the Directors considered the matters set outin section
172(1)(a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006. The Directors also took into account the views and interests of
.. a wider set of stakeholders, including customers, regulators, the UK Government and non- governmental '
organisations, including: - S
* the likely consequences of any decrsron in the long term;
« the need to foster the Company’s business relationships with supplrers ‘customers and others;
‘e the impact of the Company's operations on the community and the environment;
the desirability of the Company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
‘the need to act fairly as between members of the Com'pany.

You can find out more about who the Barclays GCroup’s key 'stakeholder's are, how management and/or the
_ Directors engaged with them, the key issues raised and actions taken on pages 16-19 of the Barc|ays PLC
(BPLC) Annual Report 2021 which is mcorporated by reference into thrs statement

Considering this broad range of interests is an important part of the way the Board makes decisions, although
in balancing those different perspectives it will not alWays be possible to deliver everyone’s desired outcome
- or necessarily achieve a positive. outcome for all stakeholders. '

How does the Board engage with stakeholders? '

Depending on the decrsron in questron the relevance of each partrcular stakeholder group may drffer -and
‘equally the Board adopts a variety of methods of engagement with different stakeholder groups. The Board
will sometimes engage directly with certain stakeholders on certarn issues, but the size and distribution of

- our stakeholders and of Barclays means that stakeholder engagement often takes place at an operatronal
level.

In addition, to ensure a more efficient and effective approach, certain stakeholder engagement is led at
Barclays Group level, in partrcular where :matters are of group wrde significance or have the potentral to
|mpact the reputation of the Barclays Group. : :

The Board considers and discusses information from across the organisation to help it understand the impact
of the Company’s operations on, and the interests and views of, our key stakeholders. It also reviews strategy,
financial and operational performance as well as information covering areas such as key risks, and legal and
regulatory compliance. This information is provided to the Board through reports sent in advance of each
Board meeting, and through in-person presentations.

As a result of these activities and the information it receives, the Board has an overviéw of engagement with .
. stakeholders, and other relevant factors, which enables the Directors to comply with therr legal duty under
sectron 172 of the Companies Act 2006.

’ . . 3
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'Engagement in action

The followmg are some examples of how the Directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172
when discharging their duties )

Business Review

During 2021, the Board received an update on the performance of the 'Company.including the engagement'

with clients and the key transactions, as well as its financial performance. The Board reviewed in detail the

Operating plan for the Company and tracked the progress against the plan. The Board also reviewed various.

aspects of the Company’s operations such as BX service model and its performance, regu|atory developments
. |mpacting the Company, among other things.

COVID-19 pandemic

"Throughout 2021, as the pandemic continued, the primary focus of the Company and the Board has been on

(i) maintaining service levels to':clients, (ii) the operational resilience of the trading (iii) the speed and
execution of investment decisions within our managed client portfolios and funds and .how well they
performed; (iv) the health and wellbeing of colleagues; and (v) the control environment, notably CASS
overSIght The Board has demonstrated Ieadership and oversnght during the pandemic, and this continues at
the date of this report.

Geopolitical tensions

The Company and the Board have established a strong risk n'ianage'ment culture. Risks are identified and
overseen through the Enterprise Risk Management Framework which specifies the principal risks of the

.~ Company and the approach to managing them. Current geopolitical tensions have also heightened awareness’
of certain principal risks such as conduct and reputational risk. These risks are inanaged within the
established risk framework and key performance mdicators remain within the risk appetite deﬁned by the
Company. e :

Principal risks and uncertainties

" The management of the business and the execution of the Company'’s strategy are exposed to a number of
risks. These risks are formally reviewed by the Board and appropriate processes put in place to monitor and
“mitigate them :

Material eX|st|ng and emerging risks potentially impacting more than one Principal RISk
Risks relatlng to the impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has had, and continues tovhave, a material impact on businesses around the world
and the economic environments in which they operate. There are a number of factors associated with the
bandemic and its impact on global economies that could have a material effect on (among other-things) the
profitability, capital and liquidity of financial institutions such as the Company. :
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The COVID-19 pandemic has caused disruption tothe Company'’s customers and suppliers. It remains unclear
how the COVID-19 pandemlc will evolve through 2022 (including whether there will be further waves of the
COVID-19 pandemlc whether COVID-19 vaccinés ‘continue to prove effective, whether further new strains of
"COVID-19 will emerge and whether, and in what manner, additional restrictions will be imposed and/or
eXisting restrictions extended) and the Company continues to monitor the situation closely. However, despite
the COVID-19 contihg‘ency plans established by the Company, the ability to conduct business may be
adversely affected by disruptions to infrastructure and supply chains, business processes. and technology
services, resulting from the unavailability of staff due to illness or the failure of third parties to supply services.

" This may cause significant customer detriment, costs to reimburse losses incurred by the Bank’s customers,
potential litigation costs (including regulatory fines, penalties and other éancti'ons), and reputational damage.

Furthermore, the Compahy relies on models to support a broad range of business and risk management

activities, including informing business decisions and strategies, measuring and limiting risk, valuing
exposures, conducting stress testing and assessing capital adequacy. Models are, by their nature, imperfect
and incomplete representations of reality because they rely on assumptions and inputs, and so they may be
subject to errors affecting the accuracy of their outputs and/or misused. This may be exacerbated when
dealing with unprecedented scenarios, such as the COVID-19 pandemlc due to the lack of reliable historical -
reference points and data.

There can be no assurance that economic activity will return to pre-pandemic levels and, accordingly, there
could be further adverse impacts on the Company’s mcome and. profi tablllty caused by transactlon volumes
due to volatnhty or.weakness in the capital markets. :

Any and all such events ment|oned above could have a matenal adverse effect on the Company business,
. financial condltlon results of operations, prospects, liquidity and capital posutuon as well as on the Company’s
clients and suppllers

. Business conditions, general economy and geopolitical issues

The Company’s operations are subject to potentially unfavorable global and local economic and market .
conditions, as well as geopolitical developments, which may have a material effect on the Company’s
business, results of opefation's, financial condition and prospects.

A deterioration in global or local economic and market conditions may lead to (amongst other things):

(i) deteriorating business, consumer or investor confidence, which in turn may lead to lower client activity;

(i) subdued asset prices including the value of any collateral held by the Company; and (jii) mark-to-market

losses in trading portfolios resultlng from changes in factors such as credit ratings, share prices and solvency
- of counterpartues :

Geopolitical events may lead to further financial instability and affect economic growth. In particular:

* Clobal GDP growth recovered in 2021 from the severe contraction in 2020 as a result of the COVID-
' 19 pandemic. While government support packages, accommodative monetary policy and the lifting
of certain restrictions on movement bolstered economic growth and confi dence in 2021, the global
“outlook remains highly uncertain, especially regarding: (a) ongoing concerns about howthe COVID- -
19 pandemlc may develop; (b) the disruptive impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on supply chains;
and (c) how long inflationary_pressures will persist and whether central banks will succeed in

5
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normallsmg monetary policy. These factors could adversely affect the chent actlvuty Ievels in equities
markets and thus have an impact on the Company’s performance. :

_ * Recent increases in inflation khaye been partly driven by a rebalancing of supply and demand,
following the relaxation of restrictions on movement that were imposed during the COVID-19
pandemic. Monetary policy remains highly accommodative, increasing the risk that more Aabrupt
governm'ent action will be necessary later if inflation does not prove transitory. A prolonged period
of rising inflation may develop into slow. or stagnant economic growth if combined with’ slowing
economic expansion and elevated unemployment Any government action ‘'on monetary policy is
likely. to impact client asset class aIIocatlon strategy which may have an impact.on client activity
levels.

+ An escalation in geopolitical tensions or increased use of protectionist measures, such as .in the
Ukraine and Russia conflict, may have a material adverse effect on the Company'’s business.
] . .

- Trading disruption between the’EU and the UK-may have a significant impact on ecoriomic activity in
- the EU and the UK which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
results of operatlons financial condition and prospects.

Material existing and emerging risks impacting individual Principal Risks '
-'. ‘Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from potential adverse changes in the value of the Company’s assets and -

-liabilities from fluctuation in market variables including, but not limited to, interest rates, foreign exchange,

eqwty prices, dividend expectation, credit spreads, implied volatilities and asset correlations. The Company

incurs market risk via trading activities with clients and via the IIQLIId assets that the Company holds. The

Company manages the risk through a range of complementary approaches to identify and evaluate market -
. risk. These are measured, limited and monitored by market risk specialists. :

Economic and financial market uncertainties remain elevated, as the path of the COVID-19 pandemic is
inherently difficult to predict. Further waves of the COVID-19 pandemic, a disruptive adjustment to monetary
policy normalisation, intensifying social unrest that weighs on market sentiment and deteriorating trade and

geopolitical tensions are some of the factors that could heighten farket risks for the Company'’s portfolios.
L , \

In.vaddi‘tion, the Company’s business is generally exposed to a pro|onged period of elevated asset price
volatility, particularly ifit adversely affects market liquidity. Such a scenario could impact the Company’s ability
to execute client trades and may also result in lower-client flow-driven income‘and/or market-based losses
on its existing portfolio of m'arket'risks. These can include higher hedging costs from rebalancing risks that .
need to be managed dynamically as market levels and their associated volatilities change. _

It is difficult to predict changes in market conditions, and such changes could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.
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e Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Company from the failure of clients, customers or counterparties including
sovereigns, to fully honour their obligations to the Company including the whole 'and timely payment of
principal, interest, ‘collateral and other receivables.: Credit risk also arises through downgrading of
tounterparties whose credit instruments the Company may be holding, causing the value of those assets to '
fall. The Company employs a range of risk measurement techniques and methodologies to mitigate credit
risk. : ‘

-+ Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company’s cash and committed facilities may be insufficient to meet its
contractual or contingent obligations or that it does not have the appropriate amount, tenor and composition
of funding and liquidity to support its assets. The Company maintains a mixture of long term and short term
committed facilities including financial support from its parent, BBPLC, that are designed to ensure the
Company has sufficient available funds for operations. ' ' ‘

The Company is part of a Domestic Liquidity Sub-Group (DolLSub) for Liquidity Management requirements
under the European Capital Requirements Directive (CRDIV) and the European Capital Requirements
Regulation (CRR). The DoLSub arrangement constitutes BBPLC and the Company. Barcléys has obtained an
extension until 28 February 2027 to the waiver from the PRA to supervise both entities as a single Liquidity
Sub-Group on the back of a Liquidity Credit Sl,'lpport‘agreement. that allows the free movement of funds
between the two entities, enabling them to meet their individual and joint obligations as they bécome due.
-As aresult of the DoLSub arrangement, any risks to the liquidity position of BBPLC are also a direct risk to the
Company. This agreement gives rise to potential contingent liabilities aibeit not quantifiable and hence not
disclosed separately. :

« . Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk-of loss to the Company from inadequate or failed processes or systems, human
- factors or due to external events (e.g. fraud or cyber risk) where the root cause is not due to credit or market
risk. The-Company’s businesses are dependent on the ability to process a large number of transactions
efficiently and accurately. The Company has outsourced operational activities within the Company to other
~ Barclays Group entities including the Group Service Company. These outsourced activities are managed
through various intra-group service agreements between BBPLC, the Combany and the Group Service
Company, in which the Company is a service beneficiary. The Company continues to be accountable for the
risk arising from the actions of the outsourced activities. Failure to adequately manage outsourcing risk
through control environments which remain robust to ever changing threats and challenges could result in
increased losses, inability to perform critical economic functions, client detriment, potential regulatory
~ censure and penalty, legal liability and reputational damage. The Company assesses its risk and control
environment across its functions with a view to maintaining an acceptable level of residual risk.

+ Capital and Regulatory risk

Capital risk islthe risk that the Corhpanyv has an insufficient level or composition of capital to support its
normal business activities and to meet its regulatory capital requirements under normal operating

. environments or stressed conditions. Rules dictating the measurement of capital may be tightened which
4 , _ .
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would constrain the Companys planned activities and contnbute to adverse impacts on the Company’s
earnings.

Regulatory risk arises from a fallure or inability to comply fully with the laws, regulatlons or codes applicable
specifically to-the financial services industry. Non-compliance could lead to fines, public repnmands damage
to reputation, increased prudential requnrements enforced suspensnon of operations or, in extreme cases,
withdrawal of authorisations to operate.

" To help meet regulatory provisions as prescribed by the PRA affecting capital adequacy and large ekposur,es
reporting, the Company has the following in place as at 31 December 2021: '

—  Acontractual guaréntee of £i bn from BBPLC to coVer credit exposures arising from counterparty credit
risk. The guarantee covers large exposures which are in excess of 23% of the company’s eligible capltal
relevant for limits to large exposures. This guarantee will remain-in effect until terminated by either of
the parties to the guarantee by provndmg 30 business days’ notlce in wntmg to the other party.

- A contractual guarantee of £1bn from BBPLC to cover credit exposures arising from counterpartvy credit
risk ranked by risk weighted amount. The guarantee limit can be amended from time to time with
agreement between both parties. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated by either of the

" parties to the guarantee by providing 30 business days’ notice in wntmg to the other party

"~ Acontractual guarantee from BBPLC to cover securities financing transactions to non-core internal large-
exposures which are in excess of the company’s eligible capital relevant for limits to large exposures in
accordance with Article 4(1)(71)(b) and Articie 494 of the CRR. Thé guarantee limit is set to £1 and can
be amended from time to time with agreemeni from.both parties. The main exposures to whi_ch this
guarantee relates to are Barclays Cabital Inc, Barclays Securities Japan Limited and Barclays Bank Ireland
PLC. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated either by the. beneﬂc:ary or guarantor by
providing 30 busmess days notice in wntmg to the other party.

- Acontractual guarantee of £1.5bn from BBPLC to cover exposure with Barclays Capital Luxembourg Sarl
for stock loan transactions. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated by the guarantor by
providing 30 business days’ notice in writing to the beneficiary. :

— - Floating rate perpetual subordinated write doWn‘Securities (AT1 securities) issued for £200m on
22 August 2019, which are included within additional Tier 1 capital; :

- Subbrdinated“cal'labie notes of £150m issued on 22" August 2019 and £150m issued: on
19 December 2019, which are included within Tier 2 capital. '

The Company’s capital management strategy is to continue to maximize shareholder value by prudently
optimising both thelevel and composition of its capital resources. '

“The Company’s capital management objectives are to:
-  Maintain sufficient capital resources to support the Company’s risk appetlte
. — Maintain sufficient capital resources to meet the PRA's mmlmum regulatory capital ratios.
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External Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Company is subjéct to the Capital' Requirements Regulation (CRR) and Capital Requirements Directive
(CRD) implementation of Basel 3 within the EU (collectively known as CRD IV) on 1 January 2014. The rules
are supplemented by the Regulatory Technical Standards’ and the PRAs rulebook, including the
implementation of the transitional rules. Rules and guidance are still subject to change as certain aspects of
CRD IV are dependent on final technical standards and clarifications to be issued by the European Banking
Authonty (EBA) and adopted by the European Commission and the PRA. Al capital and rlsk welghted assets
(RWAs) calculations reflect the Company’s interpretation of the current rules.. '

The Company has been granted approval by the PRA to adopt advanced approaches for computing credit,

market and operational risk capital requirements. The Company uses ‘The Standardised Approach’ (TSA) for
‘ ooerational risk regulatory capital purpose with effect from 1 April 2018. Pillar 1 capital requirements are
_generated using the Company’s risk models together with standardised calculations.

In December 2017, the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (BCBS) finalised Basel 3 eliminating the
model based approaches for certain categories of RWAs (for example, operational risk RWAs, Credit Valuation
Adjustments (CVA) volatility and credit risk RWAs for equity exposures), revised the standardised approach’s
risk weights for a number of exposure categories, replaced the four existing approaches for ooerational risk
(including the advanced measurement approach) with a single standardised measurement approach and
established 72.5% of standardised approach RWAs for exposure categones as a ﬂoor for RWAs calculated

~ under the advanced approaches (referred to as the “output ﬂoor”)
f

The majority of the final Basel 3 changeé are expected to be implemented commencing 1 January 2022, with
a five-year phase-in period for the output floor and with a single Standardised Measurement Approach. '

CRD IV Capital ratios

The current regulatory requirémenf is to meet a fully loaded CRD IV CET1 ratio comprising the required 4.5%
minimum CET1 ratio and Capital Conservation Buffer.(CCB) of 2.5%..

Also forrning part of the Buffer requirement is the Counter-Cyclical Capital Buffer (CCyB) and the Systemic
Risk Buffer (SRB). The Company’s CCyB is based on the buffer rate applicable for each jurisdiction in which -
the Company has exposures. In March 2020, the Financial Policy Committee (FPC) cut the CCyB rate for UK
exposures to 0%. The buffer rates set by other national authorities for non-UK exposures are currently not

. material. Overall, this results in 0.03% CCyB for the-Company as at 31 December 2021. At its meeting in
December 2021, the FPC agreed that it would raise the UK CCyB rate to 1% with effect from 13 December
2022. No SRB has been set to date.

The Company’s Pillar 2A requirement for 2021 was equal to £269mn, of which 56% needs to be met with
CETY capital, equating to approximately 1.9% of the RWAs. The. Company’s 2020 Pillar 2A add-on was
reduced from 3.8% to 2.4% effective 23 July 2020 with 1.4% of RWAs needing to be met in CET1 form. The.
Pillar 2A requirement is subject to at least annual review and has been-set as a nominal capital amount. This
s based on a point in time assessment and the requirement (when ex’pressed as a proportion of RWAs) will
" change dependmg on the total RWAs at each reporting period. All capital and RWA calculatrons reflect the
Company’s interpretations of the current rules.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s CET1 ratio was 17.05‘70 (2020: 13.06%) which exceeds the 2021
minimum requirement of 8.88% including the minimum 4.5% of CET1 requirement, 1.85% of Pillar 2A
requirement, a 2.5% CCB buffer and -a 0.03% CCyB buffer.

The table below provides details of the Company s'CRD IV transmonal capital ratlos capital resources and
RWAs at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

12021 2020

Risk weighted assets (in £'000) ’ 8,167,669 8,647,182
Common Equity Tier 1 capltal ratio ' 3 17.0% 131%
Tier 1 capital ratio : ‘ 4 ' : 19.5% 15.4%
Total capital ratio ’ o ‘ 231% . 18. 9%

The Company s Total capital ratio mcreased to 23.1%(2020: 18.9%), as a resultof a 6% decrease in RWAs to’
£8,168m and 16% increase in total cvapatal ' . :

Significant regulatory updat_es in the period

Following the withdrawal of the UK from the EU, any references to CRR as amended by CRR It mean, unless

_otherwise specified, CRR as amended by CRR 1l as it forms part of UK law pursuant to the European Union
(Withdrawal) Act 2018'and subject to the temporary transitional powers (TTP) available to UK regulators to
delay or phase-in on-shoring changes to UK regulatory requirements ansung attheend ofthe transition penod
until 31 March 2022 as at the apphcable reporting date.

. Per the CRR I regulations, the entity falls under the ambit of the ‘large institution’ definition as per Article 4
(146) & (147), as the total value of its assets is equal to or gfeater than EUR 30 billion. As a consequence, the
entity would be required to adhere to the binding requiren{ent of maintaining a minimum Leverage Ratio
under UK Leverage Ratio framework, together with the publishing of an entity specific Pillar 3 disclosure, both
of which wiII come into effect from- 1 January 2022. - B

On 8 October 2021, the PRA pubhshed its Policy Statement on the UK Ieverage ratio framework. The. Policy

Statement confirms that UK banks will be subject to a single UK leverage ratio requirement meaning that the
' CRR leverage ratio will no Ionger apply for UK banks. Whilst Iargely upholding the existing framework,

technical changes generally align to the Basel Il standards with the exception of the quallfymg ‘claims on

central banks exemption. ‘Central bank claims can be excluded from the UK leverage ratio measure aslong as
' they are matched by qualifying liabilities (rather than dep051ts) Minimum requirements are expected to be '

applied at the individual Ievel from 1 January 2023 anng wuth additional reporting requnrement in the form of
~ Average reporting. '

10
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Key performance indicators -

. The Board of Directors monitors progress on the overall strategy by reference to profit after tax as- a key
performancé indicator. The financial performance metrics are aimed at generating long term sustainable
returns. Total income increased by 11.2% to £724m from 2020. Total operating expenses increased by 18 0%
‘to £258m from 2020. Profit after tax increased by 15.6% to £318m (2020: £275m).

DocuSngned by:
FUK E&SSA(?ﬁssB‘EHALr ur THE.BOARD

Steven Ewart
Director.

9 May 2022 .
Company Number 1929333 '

1
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. The Directors present their annual report together with the audited financial statements of Barclays Capital
Securities Limited (the ‘Company’ or ‘BCSL’) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Proﬁt and divtdends

The results of the Company show profit after tax of £318m (2020: £275m) and total income of £724m (2020:
. £651 m) The Company has net assets of £1, 692m (2020: £1 387m) :

No interim dividends were declared and paid during the year 2021 (2020: Nif). The Directors do not '
recommend the payment of a final dividend for 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors

The Directors of the Company, who served during the year 2021 and up to the date of S|gn|ng the financial
statements, are as shown below: :

. Michael Ashley — Non- Executive Dlrector Chatrman Board Nominations Committee Chairman and Board
Audit Committee Chairman . T :
Dawn Fitzpatrick - Non-Executive Director, 'Board Remuneration Committee Interim Chair and Board Risk’
Commiittee Interim Chair (appointed 27 September 2021)
Paul Leech - Chief Executive Officer (appointed 8 June 2021)
Steven Ewart - Chief Financial Officer
Tim Breedon — Non-Executive Director (resignedl November 2021)
Helen Keelan — Non-Executive Director (resigned 30 April 2021)
~ Stephen Dainton - Executive Director (resigned 7 June 2021)

Corporate Governance Statement -

The Board endeavors to maintain high standards of corporate governance and, as explained last year, we have
- chosen not to adopt and report against the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code as this is de5|gned for
premium listed companies. Whilst we fully supported the introduction of the Wates Corporate Governance
. Principles for Large Private Companies (m ‘particular the focus on purpose, culture and employee and
_ stakeholder engagement), we continue to feel they are less appropriate for a wholly-owned subsidiary of a
premium listed company which is also a complex financial institution subject to a comprehensive regulatory

regime. We have therefore continued to adopt our own corporate governance principles and arrangements
which we believe are most appropriate for the Company, and are designed to ensure effective decision-
‘making to promote the Company’s success for the long term. '

Our primary aim, as reported last year, is that our governance arrangements_:

e are effective;
+ provide checks and balances and encourage:- constructive challenge
.+ driveinformed, collaborative and accountable decision-making; and
« create long-term sustalnable value for our shareholder the ultimate shareholders of Barclays and our
wider stakeholders.
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. Set out below are the principles which underptn our corporate governance'arrangements and how these
" principles have been applied during 2021. ‘

The Barclays Group-wide governance framework is set by BPLC and has been designedtoA facilitate effective
management of the Barclays Group. This includes the setting of Barcl'ays Group policiés in relation to matters
such as Barclays’ Values, Barclays’ Remuneration Policy and the Barclays’ Charter of Expectations. Where
appropriate, this Corporate Governance Statement makes reference to those Barclays Group policies which
are relevant to the way in which the Company is governed.

Our corporate governance principles and how the Company has applied them during 2021:

Principle One: Board Leadership and Company Purpose

A successful company is led by an effective and entrepreneurial board whose roleiis to establish the company’s
purpose, values and strategy, aligned to its culture, and make decisions to promote its success for the long
term benefit of its shareholder, having regard to the interests of other relevant stakeholders and factors.

-« The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Company and is also responsible for setting the

- Company’s strategic. direction (within agreed parameters) and creating and artuculatmg a clear vision

based on Barclays’ Values.
= Culture remains a core area -of focus wit,n the Board actively promoting ethical ‘Ieadership and

:accountability whilst supporting and reinforcing the Barclays’ Code of Conduct, the Barclays Way, and the
Barclays’ Values, to achieve a dynamic and positive culture. Following the work completed in 2020 on
reinvigorating our Purpose, the BPLC Board oversaw the launch of the Group-wide Mindset - Empower,
Challenge and Drive - in February 2021. Our Mindset defines the way in which we want to get things done.

* at Barclays. Mindset is a core part of the Group’s culture and a core focus for the Board.

Principle Two: Division of Responsibilities , .
An effective Board requires a clear division of responsibilitieé with the Chairman leading the Board and being
responsible for its overall effectiveness, and the executive leadership. of the company’s business being
- delegated to the Chief Executive, who is supported in this role by the Executive Committee. The Board should
consist of an appropriate combination of Executive and independent Non-Executive Directors, each with a
clear understanding of their accountability and responsibilities. The Board's pnlicies and procedures should -
support effective decision-making and independent challenge. ' '

= There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and Chief Executive, which is
documented by the Company :

- = Policies and protocols are in place to support effective decision- makmg and mdependent challenge
including: the Barclays Group's corporate governance manual, setting out clearly how the Barclays Group
entities and their respective boards and board committees should interact, and the Company’s Charter of
Expectations, setting out the role and responsibilities of each Director.

= The Board’s responsibilities are executed in part through Board Commi_ttees' (Board Audit Committee,
Board Risk Committee, Board Remuneration Committee and Board Nominations Committee), which
provide oversight and make recommendations on the matters delegated to them by the Board.

= Appropriate information and support is provuded to the Board to enable it to undertake its work with due
care and discharge its responS|b|I|t|es
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Principle Three: Composition, Succession and Evaluation

A Board with the right balance of skills, experience and diversity is critical to the sustainable delivery of value
to the company’s shareholder and broader stakeholders. The size of the Board should be guided by the scale -
and complexity of the company and appointments should be based on merit and objective criteria and with
a view to promoting diversit)} and subject to a formal, rigorous and transparent procedure which is
‘underpinned by an effective succession plan for the Board and senior management. A successful Board is a
cohesive board that provides informed and constructive challenge to the management team and measures
its effectiveness. '

=. The size and composition of the Board is appropriate to a large UK Investment Firm (the principal activitiés
of which are outlined on page 2). A good balance exists between Executive and Non-Executive Directors
who bring a strong combination of technical, finance (mcludrng ﬁnancral services), risk and audit
experience. In addition, the Chairman brings mdependent challenge as well as insights from his other Non-.
Executive appointments within the Barclays Group. The BCSL Board is composed of Michael Ashley
(Chairman, Non-Executive Director), Dawn Fitzpatrick (Non-Executive Dlrector) Paul Leech (Chref
Executive Officer) and Steven Ewart (Chief Financial Officer). ‘

« All appointments to the Board and senior management are based on merlt and objectlve criteria with a
strong acknowledgement of the benefits of diversity (including but not limited to‘gender, ethnicity,
geography and business experience) for an effective Board and orga_nisation. Diversity will remain a key
area of focus. Further detail, including on the Barclays Group's Board Diversity Policy, can be found in the
BPLC Annual Report 2021. ' ' '

= Accountability is driven through routine evaluations in accordance with the Barclays Group Policy on Legal
Entities and Directors. ' o

« Onan annual basis in line with the Matters Reserved for the Board and Terms of References of the Board

' Commlttees an effectrveness review of the Board and Commlttees IS carried out
. /

Principle Four: Audit, Risk and Internal Control ‘ N

The Board has establrshed formal and transparent policies and procedures to (i) identify the nature and extent
of principal risks the Company is willing to take in order to achieve its long-term strategic ob;ectrves (ii)
manage such risks effectively; (iii)-oversee the internal control framework; (iv) promote the independence
and effectiveness of internal and external audit functrons and (v) satisfy itself on the integrity of financial
reportmg
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The Board has delegated review and monitoring of certain matters to its Board Risk Committee and Board
Audit Committee and receives regular reports from them on relevant matters. ’ : :
Principal risks have been identified, as articulated on pages 4-8 of the Strategic Repdrt, and are integrated
with those of the Barclays Group, with robust processes in place to evaluate and manage such risks.

The BPLC Board Risk Committee reviews, on behalf of the BPLC Board, BPLC's Risk management function’s.
recommendations on the prmcnpal risks as set out in’ the Barclays Group’s Enterpnse Risk Management

-Framework (ERMF), with the exception of Reputatnon risk which is a matter reserved to the Board; the

BPLC Board Risk Committee recommends the ERMF to the BPLC Board for approval; and, following such
approval, the BPLC Risk management function refers the ERMF to Barclays Group subsidiaries for adoption.

" As part of its remit, the BPLC Board Risk Committee keeps under review the_effectiveness of BPLC’s risk
" management systems and, on an annual basis, BPLC evaluates the appropriateness of the Barclays Group’s

risk measurement systems and models governance. The Barclays Group’s ERMF is, followihg review and
recommendation by the BCSL Board Risk Committee, adopted by the BCSL Board; and thus applies to the -
Company .also; and, as indicated above, the Compaﬁy’s ‘risk measurements systems and models -
governance are part of the overall Barclays Group matters, which are evaIuated as to their approprlateness
by BPLC'’s Board Risk Committee. ‘ ‘

The BCSL Board approves, within the parameters set by BPLC, the Company’ s risk appetlte i.e. the level of -

" risk which the Company is prepared to accept across different risk types.

Effectuveness‘ of risk management is reviewed regularly by the BCSL Board Risk Committee (with
responsibility for providing oversight on current and potential future risk exposures).

The BPLC Board Audit Committee reviews and monitors, among other matters, the effectiveness of the
Barclays Group’s internal controls and the independence and effectiveness of the internal -and external .
audit processes. As such, there are internal controls WhICh are applued and monitored at a Barclays Group.
level, and thus apply to the Company also.

Principle Five: Remuneration

The remuneration policies and praétices should support strategy and promote Iong—term'sustainable success,
and be developed in accordance with formal and tran'sparent procedures, ensuring no Director is involved in
deciding their own remuneration outcome. Executive remuneration should be allgned to the company’s
purpose and values and the successful dehvery of the strategy; with outcomes taklng account of company
and individual performance, and wider circumstances such as pay across the company’s workforce and‘
Barclays’ Fair Pay agenda ' : )

The Barclays Group's Remuneration Policy is set.by the BPLC Remuneration Committee, which has
responsibility for setting the overarching principles and parameters of remuneration policy ‘across the
Barclays Group and for considering and approving the remuneration arrangements of senior executives.
The Remuneration Policy links remuneration to achieving sustained high perfofmanqe and creating long-
term value. :

The Policy is applied in respect of all employees of the Barclays Group, mcludmg those who carry out work
for the Company, given that the CQmpany did not have any employees itself as of, or during the year ended,

.31 December 2021 (nor as of the date of issue of this Report). Refer to Note 8 for details.

No Director participates in discussions or decisions relating to his or her own remuneration.
The Barclays Group remains focused on ifnprgving its gender pay gap position, with the 2021 gender pay' <
gap statistics published on the,Governmént':s Gender Pay Gap reporting portal in February 2022. For 2021,
Barclays has also bublished a Fair Pay report summarising its approach to pay fairness.
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Principle Six: Stakeholder relationships and engagement

Directors should foster effective stakeholder rélationships aligned to the company’s purpose. The Board
should recognise the importance of listening to, and understanding the views of its stakeholders, including
the workforce, and specifically the impact of the company’s behavior and business on customers and clients,
colleagues, suppliers, communltles and society more broadly; havrng regard to these views and impact when
taking decisions. . : _ -

<.

+ Through the Company’s defined purpose and strategy, key stakeholders on whom the success of the
Company depends are |dent|f ed. Please see pages 3 of the. Strategic Report for detarls of aur key
stakeholders. : :

* The Board seeks to understand key stakeholders’ views, and the impact of the Company’s behavior and
business ‘on them. in response to The Companies (Mlscellaneous Reporting) Regulatlons 2018, further _
information on stakeholder engagement can be found in the Strategic Report. :

= Details on how we engaged with our stakeholders in 2021, and the link between stakeholder management

“and key decisions, is set out in the section 172 statement on page 3 of the Strategic Report.
= The Board monitors key indicators across areas such as conduct and dlscusses matters such as culture on
*aregular and ongoing basis.

Going concern
The Directors considered it appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going 'co,ncern basis.

in preparing the Company financial statements, the Dlrectors are requrred to: .
_»  assess the Company'’s ability to continue as a gorng concern, drsclosrng, as appllcable matters related
to going concern; and
. * usethegoingconcern basrs of accountrng unless they either intend to Irqwdate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternatrve but to do so.. :

After reviewing the Companys ﬁnancral position, performance projections (mcludmg the implications from

the recent. geopolrtlcal events on Russia-Ukraine conflict), the available banking facilities and taking into

account the support available from BBPLC and the ability and intent of BBPLC to continue to provide support
_to the Company, the Directors are satisfied that the Company has adequate access to resources to enable it
to meet its oblrgatlons and to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Consequently, the :
_Directors have adopted the going concern basis i |n preparing these f‘ nancral statements

Statement of Directors’ responsrbllltles in respect of the Strateglc Report, the Dlrectors Repoit and the
Financial Statements

The Directors are respon5|ble for prepanng the Strategrc Report, the Dlrectors Report and the frnancral '
. statements in accordance with applicable Iaw and regulatlons

Company Iaw requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each fi nancral year Under that law,
they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the |nternat|onal accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law.
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Under Company law the Directors must not approve the fi nancial statements unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the. Company and of the profit or loss of the Company .
for that penod In preparing these fnancral statements, the Directors are requrred to:

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
. » make judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant and reliable; .

+ state whether they have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

- assess the Company s ability to continue as a going concern, drscIosrng, as apphcable matters related to
going.concern; and
'« use the going concern basis of acoounting,unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
. operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. '

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain

" the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are responsible for such internal control as they determme is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company ‘
and to prevent and detect fraud and other rrregularrtres

Financial Risk,Management

The Company’s activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks. The Company is required to follow the
4requirements of the Barclays Group risk management policies, which include specific guidelines on the

" management of foreign exchange, interest raté and credit risks, and advice on the use of financial instruments
to manage them. The main financialrisks that the Company is exposed to are outlined in Note 28.

4

" Directors’ third party i‘ndemnity provisions

Qualrfyrng third-party mdemmty provisions (as defined by section 234 of the Compames Act 2006) were in
force during the course of the financial year ended 31 December 2021 for the benefit of the then Directors
and, at the date of this report, are in force for the benefit of the Diréctors in relation to certain losses and
liabilities which may occur (or have occurred) in connection with their duties, powers or office. ‘

Environment and ESG

The Company is part of the Barclays Group-wide initiatives on Environment and ESG matters. The Barclays
Group focuses on addressing environmental issues where it is felt that there is the greatest potential to make
a difference. As the global effort to tackle chmate change grows, the Barclays Group is moving rapidly to take
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~aleading role in contributing to the transition to alow-carbon economy. In March 2020, the Barclays Group
announced its ambition to be a net zero bank by 2050. ' '

To Succéssfully fulfil against’iour Purpose, the Group must ensure that we address the needs of all our
stakeholders. This includes our customers and clients, coIIeagues investors and the societies in which we
,operate :

. The longevity of our business can only be ensured if we help tackle the challenges of our time, such as social
inequality and climate change, whilst minimising any unintended and adverse impacts of our operations and
our business as a financial institution. To this end we seek to identify and understand the environmental,
social and goverhahce factors which impact our organisation and how we shape and impact the environment
and society around us. We do this in the context of the financial services we provide, the geographies in which
we operate and the needs of our customers and clients.

-

Barclays Group will continue to identify new opportunities and strive to integrate our broader social and
environmental impact into the way we run and govern ‘our business and the'work we do every day to help
customers and clients, colleagues and society.

. While the Barclays Group has been managing ESG issues for several years, its approach continues to evolve
in response to a dynamic external environment, .increasing investor and other stakeholder attention and -
continued innovation in our business and product offerings. Barclays Group recognises that the focus on the

. societal impact of businesses and performance against wider ESG factors has increased in recent years, with

- growing interest from a range of stakeholders including investors, clients, policy makers and regulators.

.. Disclosure. of global greenhouse gas emissions is done at a Barcla))s Group level with information available in
the BPLC Annual Report 2021 with fuller. disclosure available on our -website at

https://home.barclays/citizenship/
Engagement with customers, suppliers évnd othersina busineés'relationship with the Company

Customers and clients .are at the heart of everything we do and we are relentless in our commitment to
understandmg the needs of our customers and clients in order to inform and improve our products and
services. The Directors have regard, via management oversight, to the need to foster business relationships -
with suppllers and,as such, engage with themto seek adherence to the’ Barclays Third Party Code of Conduct
(TPCoC) and Supplier Control Obligations (:SCO) which cover our expectations of suppliers. For our higher
risk suppliers, their adherence to the SCO and TPCoCis capturéd pre-coritractually via a Pre-Contract Supplier
Assurance Attestation. Further, Barclays is a signatory to the Prompt Payment Code in the UK, aiming to péy
our suppliers within clearly defined terms. . : '

Further information .on '‘Managing our sU'ppIy chain'is set out in the BPLC Annual Report 2021.
Pillar 3 disclosures

. The Company is subject to Pillar 3 discIosur_és beginning from 1 January 2022. The Company’s parer'\t{ BBPLC
as well as its ultimate parent BPLC have published information on its risk management objectives & policies
along with its ‘ regulatory capital requirements. & resources (information available
https://home.barclays/investor-relations/reports-and-events/annual-reports/). This is in accordance with
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the rules of the Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authority. For more details, refer to -
‘Significant regulatory updates in the period’ in page 10.

Creditors’ payment policy

The pnncrpal actuvrty of the Company is the provision of financial services. It does not have trade creditors
and as such the disclosure of the creditor’s payment policy is not applicable. ¢

Independent Auditor

" The BPLC Audit Committee reviews the appointment of the statutory auditors, as-well as their relatio.nship
with the Barc|ays Group. including monitoring the Barclays Groups use of the statutory audrtors for non-
audit services and the balance of audit and non -audit fees paid to them.

Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companives Act 2006, the auditor wiII be deemed to be reappointed and .
- KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office. '

‘Non-audit services .

In order to safeguard the auditor’s mdependence and objectivity, the Barclays Group has in place a policy
setting out the circumstances in which the auditor may be engaged to provide services other than those
. covered by the Barclays Group audit. The Barclays Group Policy on the Provision of Services by the Group
Statutory Auditor (the Policy) applies to all Barclays’ subsidiaries and other material entities over which
Barclays has significant influence. The core principle of the Policy is that non-audit services (other than those
legally required to be carried out by thé Barclays Group's auditor) should be performed by the auditor only in
certain controlled circumstances. The Policy sets out those types of services that are strictly permitted. '

The fees payable to KPMG LLP by the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to £0.5m

~(2020: £0.6m), of which £0.4m (2020: £0.5m) was payable in respect of non-audit services, all of which -
related to statutory or regulatory filings. A breakdown of the fees payable to the auditor for statutory audit
and non-audit work can be found in Note 8 to the financial slta‘tetm,ents. ' ' '

Statement of disclosure of informiation to the auditor

Each Director confirms that, so far as he/she is are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
:Company‘s Auditor is unaware. The Directors have taken all the steps that they ought to. have taken as
Directors in order to make themselves aware of any.relevant audit information and to establish that the
-Company's Auditor is aware of that information. This confirmation is given pursuant to section 418 of the Act
and should be interpreted m accordance wrth and subject to those provisions. '

Post ba,lance sheet events

The contractual guarantee from BBPLC to the -Company which covers credit- exposures arising from
Counterparty Credit risk ranked by risk werghted amount, with a limit of £1bn as of 31 December 2021 had
been increased to £2.5bn on 28 March 2022, as part of the capital management actions for the entity.

In the 27 October 2021 UK Budget, tne- Chancellor confirmed a decrease in the bank surcharge‘frorn the
current 8% to 3% from April 2023. This change was substantively enacted post year end on 2 February 2022.

19



N
2

DocuSign Envelope ID: 83289035-C4F343f1-9072-1A533C2FD7E7

Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Directors’ Report
For the year ended 31 December 2021

‘As a result the effective tax rate WI|| reduce to 27.7% for the year 2023 and to 28.0% for the year 2024 and
onwards. Th|s will also |mpact the deferred tax balances in the subsequent years, however the impact is not
material..

There were no other important events affecting the Company which have occurred since 31 December 2021.
DoeuSigned by: ) K - ‘ '

gy o
' 6366F3A80C58427... .

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Steveh Ewart

Director

9 May 2022

Company Number 1929333
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statéments of Barclays Capital Securities Limited (“the Company”) for the year
ended 31 December- 2021 which comprise the statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive tncome,
‘Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and related notes,
including the summary of sugnlf‘cant accountlng poI|C|es in Note 3.

In our opinion the financial statements:

s . givea tru‘e'and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit
for the year then ended; - : .

-+ . have been properly prepared in accordance with internatiohal accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conductedour audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)”) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under,
and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical
Standard We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropnate basis for our
ropmlon :

Going concern

-

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to .
liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company's financial
position means that this is realistic: They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that
could have cast significant doubt over its abullty to continue as a going concern for at Ieast a year from the
date of approval of the fi nancial statements (° the going concern period”).

In our evaluation of the Directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company'’s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue
opefations over the going concern period. The risks that we considered most likely to adversely affect the
Company’s available financial resources over this period were:

- The availability of funding and liquidity in the event of a market wide stress scenario; and

- The'ab_ilit){ and intent of Barclays Bank PLC to cont’i'n_ue to provide subport to the Company. .

Given the level of financial resources, and the risks inherent in the cash flows, particularly the reliance on
‘Barclays Bank PLC, our evaluation of the Directors’ going concern assessment was of particular significance -
in our audit. . : :

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect the liquidity in the going concern period by’
assessing the Directors’ sensitivities over the level of available financial resources indicated by the Company’s
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financial forecasts taking account of severe, but plausible adverse effects that could arise from these risks
individually and collectively.

Our conclusions based on this work: |

+ we consider that the Directors’ use of the going concern basrs of accounting.in the preparation of
the financial statements-is appropriate;

*+ we have not identified, and concur with the Directors’ assessment that there is not,. a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period. ‘

.However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as: subsequent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above
conclusions are not a guarantee that the Company will continue in.operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud A

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commlt fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures mcluded : :

+ Enquiring of:Directors as to the Company’s high-level poIici.es and procedures to prevent and detect
fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

»  Review of the Company’s internal audit reports, and Board Minutes of the Company; and .
+  Using analytical procedures to ide‘ntify any unusual or unexpected relationships. '

We communlcated |dent|fed fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of
fraud throughout the audrt

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that
“management may be ina position to make inappropriate ac_counting entries and the risk of bias in accounting
estimat'es and judgements. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud risk related to revenue recognition
" because revenue . streams are simple in nature with respect to accounting policy choice, and are easily
verifiable to external data sources or agreements wrth little' or no requirement for estimation from
management. :
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We also identified traud risks related to:

* unobservable pricing inputs into the valuation of level 3 equity derivatives; and
* existenceand accuracy of unconfi rmed over-the-counter bi-lateral derivatives.

In deterrnining'the«audjt procedures, we took- into account the results of our evaluation and testing of the
operating effectiveness of some of the Barclays Group wide fraud risk management controls.

We also performed procedures including:

, ‘°, Identrfyrng journal entries to test based on hrgh nsk criteria and comparing the |dent|f ed entriesto
supportmg documentation;, :
» Evaluating the desrgn and rmplementatlon and operatmg effectrveness of relevant internal controls; .
»  Assessing significant accounting estimates for bias; and
. Substantive procedures to address the fraud.risk.

i
M

ldent/fy/ng and respond/ng to risks of material mlsstatement due to non-comp//ance with laws and
regulations '

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on
-the financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with
the Directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the
Company’s regulatory and legal correspondence-and discussed with the Directors and other management
the policies and procedures régarding compliance with laws and regulations. o '

As the Company is regulated, our assessment of.risks involved gaining an understanding of the control
- environment including the entity’s procedures for complying with regulatory requirements. ' -

'We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications
of non- compliance throughout the audit.

The ootential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

" The laws and regulations the Company is subject to that directly impact the financial statements are fina ncial
reporting legislation (mcludrng related companies’ Iegrslatron) dnstrlbutable profits Iegrslatron and taxation

legislation.
: <

We have assessed the extent of comphance with these laws and regulatrons as part of our procedures on the
related financial statement items. - '

Whilst the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations, we did not identify any others where the
consequences of non-compliance alone could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the
financial statements. ‘

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures toidentify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the Directors and other management and- inspection of regulatory and legal
correspondence if any. Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from
relevant correspondence, an audrt will not detect that breach.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of
Barclays Capital Securities Limited '

-Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or. breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent iimi'tations of an audit, there is an urtavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our .audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed.
noncompliance with laws and regulations. is from the events and transactions reflected in the fmancral
statements, the less likely the inherently hmlted procedures required by auditing standards would |dent|fy it.

_In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional om|SS|ons misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are desrgned to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible ‘for preventing -
noncompliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

TheDirectors are responsible for the strategic report and the Directors’ report. Our 6pinion on the ﬁna'ncial .
statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the Directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether
_ based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially mlsstated or mconsrstent
with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based soIer on that work:

» we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the Directors’ report;

R ; -in our opinion the information given in those"reports,or the financial year is consistent with the .
financial statements; and -

" in our opinion those reports have been prepared in‘accordance with the Companies Act 2006.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

«  adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branch_es not visited by us; or : : '

g A : - o o o o o o
+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or" -
+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

¢ the Drrectors were not entltled to take advantage of the small companies exemptuon from™ the
requirement to prepare a strategic report.

We have nothing to report in these respects.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of
Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Directors’ responsibilities <

- As explained more fuIIy in their statement set out on page 16-17, the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s abllaty to continue as a gomg
concern, disclosing, as appllcable matters related to going concern; and using the _going concern basis of

+ accounting unless they either intend to hqurdate the Company or to cease operations, or have no reahstlc
alternative but to do SO. ' : :

Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives_ are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

* from material misstatement whether due to fraud or erfor and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s report.

"Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a materlal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, mduwdually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Afuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’S website at
. www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

. This report is made solely to the Company’s membeérs, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's

’ members those matters we are requared to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsnblllty to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

. ~

Richard Faulknec (Senior Statutory Auditor) ‘
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor -
Chartered Accountants’ ' ’

" 15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL
9 May 2022

25 - -



DocuSign Envelope ID: B3289035-C4F3-4371-9072-1A583C2FD7E7

_Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2021

,

Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand . _ : Note 2021 2020 -
Continuing operations: - . »
Interest expense L o . 4 (8,768) (9,439)
Net fee and commission income ' ' 5. , 61,117 33354
- Nettrading income - A ‘ : 6 671,374 . 627,190
" Total income _ . . o 723,723 651,105
. Credit impairment release/(charges) . i 7 “151 (7).
Net operating income . 723,874 651,098
Operating expenses . : 8 - - (258,228) (218,886)
Profit before tax 465,646 432,212
Taxation® - - o 9 (147,818) (157,223)
Profit after tax from continuing operations ' 317,828 274,989
. . : / . ' . - '
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to ‘
317,828 274,989

equity holders of the parent

All recognised gains and losses are included in the Statement of Corﬁprehensive Income.

The accompanying notes from pages 31 to 86 form an integral part of the financial statements. .
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2021

Note

_Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand 2021 2020
Assets
" Current assets : , A
Cash and cash equivalents 10 846,286 864,070
Trading portfolio assets 11 33,085,375 21,126,344
Derivative financial instruments 12- 112,089,519 - 8,900,669
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 14 57,323,785 46,325,276
Loans and other receivables at amortised cost 15 41,403,550 38,008,120
- Other assets i 16 230,975 ) 162,600
144,979,490 115,387,079
Non-current assets , . .
Financial assets mandatorily at faur value 14 678,488 -302,188
" Loans and other receivables at amortised cost 15 " 49,571 49,819
Investments in subsidiaries 18 e -
) 728,059 352,007
. Total assets ' 145,707,549 115,739,086
Liabilities ‘
Current liabilities - o ‘
Trading portfolio liabilities - 17,599,352 14,181,348
Derivative financial instruments 12 12,179,860 9,413,649
. ‘Financial liabilities ' mandatorily at fair value 19 45,675,449 39,187,776
Borrowings - 20 57,540,603 41,397,240
Other liabilities 21 339,101 264,655
Current tax liabilities 22 83,077 .65,245
© 133,417,442 ‘104,509,913
Non-current liabilities o
Repurchase agreements at amortised cost 13 7,356,833 8,140,936
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value 19 509,081 1,350,983
Borrowings : 20 2,731,577 349,813
Deferred tax liabilities 17 . 449. 445
' ‘ 10,597,940 9,842,177
. Total liabilities 144,015,382 114,352,090
Shareholders’ equity : . R
Share capital ' - 23 (i) 571,071 571,07
Other equity instruments 23 (ii) 200,000 200,000
Other reserves 24 . 250,000 250,000
Retained earnings 671,096 365,925
Total equity 1,692,167 1,386,996 .
Total equity and liabilities 115,739,086

145,707,549

The accompanying notes from pages 31 to 86 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Barclays Capital Securltles Limited
Statement of Financial Posmon as at 31 December 2021 .

The fi nanaal statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for issue on 22 Apnl 2022
and were signed on its behalf by:

DocuSIgnedby .
N 6366F3AB0CS8427...
u:vcu Lvvart .

_ Director

9 May.2022
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“Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2021

: . .Capital - .

R Figures in Pounds Sterling o Ordir:lary Preference _Other equity redemption Retained | R
thousand : . .- shares shares instruments reserve earnings  Total equity
Balance as at 1 January 2021 . 571,070 . 1 - 200,000 250,000 365925 1,386,996
Profit for the year ' Lo ‘ ' 317,828 317,828
Other equity instruments coupons paid (12,657) (12,657)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 571,070 1 ‘ 200,000 . 250,000 671,096 1,692,167
Balance as at 1 January 2020 e 571,070 ' 1 200,000 250,000 104,221 1,125,292
Profit for the year . ’ "274,989 274,989
Other equity instruments coupons paid A (13,285) (13,285)
Bajance as at 31 December 2020 : 571,070 1- 200,000 . 250,000 365,925 1,386,996

The accompanying notes from péges 31 to 86 form an ihtegral part of the financial statements.

/S
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited 4
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2021 .

Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand

2020

2021
Contmumg operatlons
Reconculuataon of profit before tax to net cash ﬂows from operatmg activities
Net cash flow from operating activities .
Profit from operations . 465,646 - 432,212
Adjustments for non-cash items: : '
Impairment ‘ A151) .7
Other non-cash movements - (18,604) © (12,823)
"Cash flows from operating activities: R A
Net (increase) in trading portfolio assets. : (11,959,031} (1 ,225,311)
Net (increase) in derivative financial instrument assets - (3,188,850)  (3,364,207)
Net (increase) in financial assets mandatorily at fairvalue (11,374,809) (12,644,914)
Net (increase) in loans and receivables (3,395,031)  (4,534,851)
Net (increase) in other assets , (145,025) °  (125,559)

" Net increase in trading portfolio liabilities = . 3,418,004 3,312,867 -
Net increase in derivative financial instrument liabilities 2,766,211 2,385,538 .
Net (decrease)/mcrease in repurchase ‘agreements , (784,103) 618,728

 Net mcrease/(decrease) in financial llabI|ItIeS mandatorily at fair value + 5,645,771 (198,699)

.Net increase in borrowings 18,558,339 15,536,466
Net increase/(decrease) in other liabilities - 74,446 (61,701)
Corporate income tax paid ) (34,727) (3,856)

- Net cash from operating activities 28,086 113,897

. : : : . L
‘Cash flows from financing activities .
Net (decrease) in sub debt borrowings " (33,213) —
Other equity instruments coupons paid (12,657) (13,285)
Net cash from financing activities (45.870)  (13,285)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (17,784) . 100,612
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - 864,070 763,458
. _Cash and cash equlvalents at the end of year 846,286 864,070

Interest paud by the Company was £8. 8m (2020 £9.4m).

. The accompanying notes from pages 31 to 86 form an integral part of the financial statements. »
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Reporting entity

.These financial statements are prepared for Barclays Capital Securities Limited (the ‘Company’), the principal
activities of the Company include provision of Prime Services, Equity Derivatives and Cash Equities. The
financial statements are separate financial statements prepared for the Company only, in line with the UK
Companies Act 2006. The Company is exempt by virtue of Section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the
requirement to prepare group financial statements. These financial statements present information about the
Company as an individual undertaking and not about its Group. The parent undertaking of the smallest group
that presents consolidated financial statements is BBPLC and the ultimate holding company and the parent
undertaking of the largest group that presents group financial statements is BPLC, both of which prepare
consolidated financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with '_
the requirements of the Company' Act 2006 and in accordance with International Financial Reporting'
Standards (IFRS) and interpretations (IFRICs) as issued by the IASB and endorsed by the UK. Accordlngly,
consolidated fi nancial statements have not been prepared by the Company based on the exemption prowded
under paragraph 4(a) of IFRS 10. :

The Company is a private limited company domiciled and incorporated in the United Kingdom. The registered
office of the Company is 1 Churchill Place, London, E14 SHP.

2. Compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies. Act 2006. The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of the financial statements are set out below, and in the relevant notes to the financial
statements. These policies have been conS|stentIy applied.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention
modified to include the fair valuation of certain financial instruments to the extent required or permltted
under IFRS, 9 'Financial Instruments’ as set out in the relevant accounting policies. They are presented in
thousands of Pounds Sterling (£'000), the functional currency of the Company.

A2

Going concern

After're‘viewing the Company's financial position, performance projections (including the implications from
the geopolitical developments on Russia-Ukraine conflict), the available banking facilities and taking into
account the support available from BBPLC and the ability and intent of BBPLC to continue to provide support
to the Company, the Dlrectors are satisfied that the Company has adequate access to resources to enable it
to meet its obligations and to continue in operatlonal existence for the foreseeable future. Consequently, the
Directors have adopted the going concern basis in preparing thése financial statements - '

New and amended standards

The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied, with the exception of the Interest Rate _
Benchmark Reform Phase 2 amendments (amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) which were applied
from 1 jJanuary 2021.
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited ,
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

There are no new, amended or proposed standards, besides above, that have had or are expected to have a
- material impact on the Company s accountmg policies. ’

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

" The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below.
. These policies have been consistently applied. ' :

(a) Foreign currency translation

ltems included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using their functional currency,
Pounds Sterling (GBP), the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Sterling using the exchange rates preveiling at the dates of
the transactions' Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate prevailing at
the period end. Foreign exchange gains and losses resultmg from the retranslation and settlement of these
items are recognised in the income statement

The Company does not have any foreign operations.
(b) Fees and commissions and revenue recognition

The Company applies IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard establishes a five-step '
model governing revenue recognition. (Refer Note 5 on Net Fee and Commission income for further details).
The Company recognises fee and commission income charged for services provided on completlon of the
underlying transaction..

(c) Interest

Interest income or expense is recogmsed on all interest beanng fmancual assets and liabilities held at
amortised cost using the effectlve interest rate method '

The«effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount of the instrument. The application of the method has the effect of recognising income (or
-expense) receivable (or payable) on the instrument evenly in proportion to the amount outstanding over the

period to maturity or repayment. : ' '

(d) Net trading income

: Net trading income is trading income arising from the margins which are achieved through market-making,
customer business, and from changes in market value caused by movements in interest and foreign exchange
rates, equity prices and other market variables. In. accordance with IFRS 9, trading positions in financial
instruments are valued on a fair value basis. The resulting income is included in trading income along with
interest and dividends arising from long and short positions and funding costs relating to trading activities.
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Barclays Capltal Securltles lelted .
- Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(e) Current tax & deferred.income tax

The Company applies IAS 12 Income Taxes in accounting for taxes on income. Income tax payable on taxable
~ profits (‘current tax’) is recognised as an expense in the period in which the profits ar‘ise.',Wit.hholding taxes

are also treated as income taxes. Income tax recoverable on tax allowable losses is recognised as an asset .

only to the extent that it is regarded as recoverable by offset against current year-or prior year taxable prdﬁts.‘

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Iiébility method, on temporary diffe_rentes arising from the
differences between the tax basis of the assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the Company’s -
financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and- legislation enacted or
substantially enacted by the Balance Sheet date and that are expected to apply when the deferred tax asset
is realised or deferred tax hablluty is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on dedu‘ctible temporafy differences, carry forward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is regarded as probable that sufficient tax profits will be available
. against which the deductible temporary difference, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
Defeired and current tax assets and liabilities are only offset where there is both the legal right to'set off and
intention to settle on a- net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability sumultaneously with the same

~ tax authonty

The key area of judgement that impacts the reported tax position is on the level of provisioning for uncertain -

" tax positions. The Company.does not consider there to be a significant risk of a material adjustment to the

'carrying amount of current and deferred tax balances, including provisions for uncertain tax positions in the .

next financial year. The provisiens for uncertain tax positions cover a diverse range of jurisdictions and reflect

.advice from external counsel where relevant. it should be noted that only a proportion of the total uncertain

tax positions will be under audit at any point in time, and could therefore be subject to challenge by a tax
authority over the next year. ' ‘

(f) Financial assets and liabilities . - ' ‘-

The Company applies IFRS 9‘Financiél Instruments to the recognition, classification and measurement, and
" derecognition of financial assets, financial liabilities, and the impairment of financial assets.

Recognition

The Company recog'niseé financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a narty to the terms of the contract.
Trade date -or settlement date- accountlng is applied depending on the classification of the financial
_ asset/ liability.

Classification and measurement
Financial assets are classified on the basis of two criteria:

i) The business model within which financial assets are managed; and ,
ii) Their contractual cash flow characteristics (whether the cash flows represent ‘solely payments '
of principal and interest’ (SPPI)).
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

The Company assesses the business model criteria at a portfolio level. Information that is considered in

determining the applicable business model includes (i) policies and objectives for the relevant portfolio, (ii)

how the performance and risks of the portfolio are managed, evaluated and reported to management, and
(iii) the frequency, volume and tlmmg of sales in prior penods sales expectation for future periods, and the:
reasons for such sales.

The contractual casH flow characteristics of financial assets are assessed with reference to whether the cash -
flows represent SPPI. In assessing whether contractual cash flows are SPPI compliant, interest is defined as
consideration primarily for the time value of money and the credit risk of the principal outstanding. The time .
value of money is defined as the element of interest that provides consideration only for the passage of time
and not consideration for other risks or costs associated with holding the financial asset. Terms that could
change the contl;actual cash flows so that it would not meet the condition for SPPI are considered, including:
() contingent and leverage features (u) non-recourse arrangements and (iii) features that could modlfy the -
time value of money. . :

Financial assets/liabilities at amortised cost

.Financial assets will be measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to coIIect/pay contractual cash flows, and their contractual cash flows -

' represent solely recelpts/payments of pnnapal and interest. Loans and recelvables and other financial assets
are held at amortlsed cost.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost; except for trading liabilities and liabilities
_mandatorily at fair value, which are held at fair ‘value-through profit or loss. Borrowings, repurchase
agreements and other financial liabilities are held at amortised cost.

Accdunting for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss account

~ Financial assets that are held for trading/mandatorily at fair value are recognised at fair value through profit
or loss. In-addition, financial assets are held. at fair value through profit.or loss if they do not contain '
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI, or if the financial asset is not
held in a business model that is either (i) a business model to collect the contractual cash flows or (ii) a
business model that is achieved. by both coIIectlng contractual cash flows and sélling. Subsequent changes.
in fair value for these instruments are recognised in the income statement in net investment income, except
if reporting it in trading income reduces an accounting mismatch. ' L

Determining the fair value

Where the classification of a financial in_strurnent requires it to be stated at fair value, this is determined by
reference to the quoted market price in an active market wherever possible. Where no such active market
exists for the particulat asset, the Company uses a valuation technique to arrive at the fair value, including

- the use of prices obtained in recent arms' length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models and other valuation techniques commoniy used by market participants.
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited o %
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

(Y

Collateral

The‘Conjpany obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where this is considered appropriate. The
collateral normally takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives the Company a claim on
these assets for both existing and future liabilities. :

The Company also receives collateral in the form of cash or securities in respect of other credit instruments,
such as stock borrowing contracts, and derivative contracts in order to reduce credit risk. Collateral received
in the form of securities is not recorded on the balance sheet. Collateral received in the form of cash is
" recorded on the balance sheet with a corresponding liability. These items are assigned to deposits received
from banks or chef counterparties. Any interest payable or receivable arising thereon is recorded as interest
exbehse or interest income -respectively-except for funding costs relating to trading activities which are -
recorded in net trading income. ‘ ' '

Impairment

’

The Company is required to recbgnise expected credit losses (ECLs) based on unbiased forWard-‘Iooki'ng
information for all financial assets at amortised cost, leasé receivables, debt financial assets at fair value
through.other comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. Intercompany
exposures, including loan commitments and-financial guarantee contracts, are also in scope under IFRS 9 for
ECL purposes. : ' ’

At the reporting date, an allowance (or provision for loan commitments and financial guarante’es) is required
for the 12 month ECLs. If the credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition (Stage 2), or if the
financial instrument is credit impaired (Stage 3) an aIIowance (or provision) should be recognised for the
Infetlme ECLs. : - '

The measurement of expected credit loss involves increased complexity and judgement, including estimation
of pfobabilities of default, loss given default, a range of unbiased future economic scenarios, estimation of
expected lives, and estlmatlon of exposures at default and assessmg s:gnlflcant lncreases in credit nsk (Refer
Note 7). ‘

Key concepts and management judgments

The impairment requirements are complex and require management judgments, estimates and aﬁsumptions.
Key concepts and managementjudgments include: - ’

Definition of defau]t, credit impaired assets, write offs, and interest income recognition

The definition of default for the purpose of determining expected credit losses has been aligned to the
- Regulatory Capital CRR Article 178 definition of default, WhICh consnders |nd|cators that the debtor is unlikely
to pay, includes exposures in forbearance and is no later than when the exposure is more-than 90 days past
~ due. When exposures are identified as cred|t umpalred or purchased or originated as such, IFRS 9 requires .
separate disclosure and interest income is requlred to be caIcuIated on the carrying value net of the
|mpa|rment allowance. '
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

‘ Expected life

Lifetime expected credit losses must be measured over the expected life. This is restricted to the maximum
- contractual life and. takes into account expected prepayment, extension, call and similar options. The
© exceptions are certain revolver financial instruments, such as credit cards and bank overdrafts, that include
both a drawn and an undrawn component where the Company s contractual ability to demand repayment
and cancel the undrawn commltment does not limit the Companys exposure to credit losses to the
contractual notice period.

'Discounting

Expected credit losses are discounted at the effective interest rate- (EIR) at initial recogmtlon or an
approximation thereof and consistent with income recognition.

.For loan commltments the EIR is that rate that is expected to apply when the loan is drawn down and a
financial asset is recognised. Issued financial guarantee contracts are discounted at a risk free rate. For
vanable/ﬂoatlng rate financial assets, the spot rate at the reporting date is used and projections of changes
in the variable rate over the expected life are not made to estlmate future interest cash flows or for .
dlscountmg

' ModeIiAng techniques

ECLs-are calculated byAmuItiplying three main components, being the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD) discounted. at the original effective interest rate. The
regulatory Basel Committee of Banking Supervisors (BCBS) ECL caIcuIatlons are Ieveraged for IFRS 9
modelling but adjusted for key dlfferences which include:

. BCBS requires 12 month through the economic cycle losses whereas IFRS 9 requires 12 months or
lifetime pomt in time losses based on conditions at the reporting date and mult|p|e forecasts of the future -
economic condltrons over the expected lives;

. IFRS 9 models do not mclude certain conservative BCBS model floors and downturn assessments and
require discounting to the reporting date at the original EIR rather than using the cost of capital to the
date of default;’

*  Management adjustments are made to modelled. output to account for situations where known or
expected risk factors and information have not been considered.in the modelling process, for example
forecast economic scenarios for uncertain political events; and '

+- ECL is measured at the individdal financial instrument level, however a collective approach where
financial instruments with similar risk characteristics are grouped together with apportionment‘ to
individual financial instruments, is used where effects can only be seen at a collectrve level, for example
for forward -looking information. '

"For the IFRS 9 impairment assessment the Company appli'es the Barclays Group's risk Models to determine
- the PD, LGD and EAD. For stage 2 and 3 the Company applies lifetime PDs but uses 12 month PDs for
" stage 1. S -
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Barclays Capital Securities Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

. The 12 month ECL is calculated by multiplying the 12 month PD, LGD and the EAD. The 12 month and lifetime -
PDs represent the PD occurring over the next 12 months and the remaining maturity of the instrument
respecti\rely The EAD represents the expected balance at default, taking into account the repayment of
principal and interest from the balance sheet date to the default event together with any expected drawdowns
of committed facilities. The LGD represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, takinginto
account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is .expected to be
realised and the time value of money

Netting

" Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts in all circumstances and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise an asset and settle the liability simultaneously. ' o

The Company enters into master agreements with counterparties whenever possible and, when appropriate,
* obtains coIIateral Master agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstandmg transactions
with the counterparty will falI due and all amounts will be settled on a net basis.

Accounting for derivatives

Derivative ‘instruments are contracts whose value is derived from one -or more underlying ﬁnanual
instruments or indices defined in the contract. They include swaps, forward-rate agreements, futures, options
and combinations of these instruments and primarily affect the Company’s net trading income and derivative ‘
assets and liabilities. Notional amounts of the contracts are not recorded on the balance sheet.

All derivative instruments are held at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives are classified as assets when
their fair value is positive or as liabilities when their fair value is negative. This includes terms included in a _
contract or financial liability (the host), which, had it been a standalone contract, would have met the
definition of a derivative. If these are separated from the host, i.e. when the economic characteristics of the
"embedded derivative are not closely related with those of the host contract and the combined instrument is
not measured at fair value through profit or loss, then the)"/‘are accounted for in the same way as derivatives.
For financial assets, the requirements are whether the financial asset contains contractual terms that give rise
on specified dates to eash flows that are SPPI, and consequently the requirements for accounting for
embedded derivatives are not applicable to financial assets.

(g) Securities borrowing, securities lending, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Securities may be lent or sold subject toa commitment to repurchase them (stock lending arrangement). -
Such securities are retained on the balance sheet when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
remain with the Company, and the counterparty liability is included separately on the balance sheet when
cash consideration is received. Similarly, where the-Company borrows or purchases securities subject to a
commitment to resell them (stock borrowing arrangement) but does not acquire the risks and rewards of
ownershrp, the transactions are treated as collateralised loans when cash consideration is paid, and the
securities are not included in the balance sheet. These secured financing transactions are mandatorily or
designated (as applicable) at fair value, and presented in the financial assets/lrabrlltles at fair value through
income statement unless accounted for at amortlsed cost.
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(h) Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries.are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment, if any.
- (i) Cash and cash.equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash comprises on demand deposuts and cash equivalents.
Cash equwalents comprise hlghly liquid investments that are convertible into cash with an insignificant risk
of changes in value with original maturities of three months or less. Trading balances are not considered to
" be part of cash equnvalents ' ' ‘ ' '
Client Money

-Segregated client funds are excluded from the balance sheet of the Company in line with Financial Conduct
Authority (FCA) Client Money Rules set out in the Client Assets Sourcebook Handbook (“CASS") CASS 7
Client Money Rules. For further details, please refer to Note 10.

(i) Issued financial instrumen_ts

Issued financial instruments or -their componenté are classified as liabilities where the contractual
arrangement results in the Compeny having a present obligation to either deliver cash or another financial
asset to the holder, to exchange financial instruments on terms that are potentially unfavourable or to satisfy
‘the obligation otherwise than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of equtty shares. Issued financial instruments' or their components, are classified as equity where
they meet the definition of equity and confer on ' the holder a residual interest in the assets of the Com pany.
The components of issued fi nancial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted
for separately with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from: the
instrument as a whole.the amount sep'aAratery determined as the fair value of the liability component.

(k) Share capital and dividends
Sha[e issue costs

Incremental costs directly attnbutab|e to the issue of new shares or options or the acquisition ofa busmess
are shown in eqwty asa deductlon net of tax, from the proceeds

Dividends on ordinary shares

D|V|dends on ordmary shares are recognised in equity in the penod in-which they are pald or, if earller
approved by the Company s.shareholders. :

() Provisions and contingent liabilities

_Provisions are recognised for present obligations ariéing as consequences of past events where it'is more
‘likely than not that a.transfer of economic benefits will be necessary to settle the obligation, and these can
"be reliably estimated.

- Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future
events or present obligations where_the transfer of economic benefit is uncertain or cannot be reliably -
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measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the balance sheet but are disclosed unless the
. likelihood of an outflow of economic resources is remote. ' '

(m) Critical accounting estimates and iudgm_érjts

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of estimates. It also requires
management to exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies. The key areas i\nvolving a higher -

- degreé of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the individual financial
statements are disclosed in Fair Value ‘'of Financial Instruments in Note 26 and Taxation in Note 9. There are
no other areas lnvolvmg significant accounting estimates and judgements.

4. Interest expense.

2021 2020

: £'000s £'000s
. Interestexpense . - ‘ . (8768) . (9,439)
' ' - _(8768) = (9,439)

Interest expense relates to interest on Subordmated Debt fundmg of £300m (2020 £334m) held at amortised
cost. :

/5. Net fee and commission income

The Company applies IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The standard establishes a five-step

model governing revenue recognition. The five-step model requires ‘the Company’ to (i) identify the contract

with the customer, (i) identify each of the performance obligations included in the contract, (iii) determine

the amount of consideration ‘in the contract, (iv) allocate the consideration to ‘each of ‘the identified
- performance obligations and (v) recognise revenue as each ‘perfo'rmance obligation is satisfied.

- The Company fecognises fee and commission income charged for services provnded by the Company on
completion of the underlylng transaction. ’ '

Fee and‘commission income is disaggregated by fee types that reflect the hature of the services offered by -
the Company in accordance with IFRS. 15. All fee and commission income is accounted for in scope of»
" IFRS15. ) : o
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Information on the services provided and fee types is detailed below.

2021 . 2020
Fee fype ’ -
Markets Execution o . : 198,754 185,643
Management and Advisory _ — I ‘ 29,398 - 27,869 -
Service fees from Affiliates - . S 32,934 13,363
Total revenue from contracts with customers . _ 261,086 226,875
Transfer pricing and revenue share ' '4 (36,110 (33,970)
Fee and commission income : o - - 224,976 . 192,905
Non Affiliates. ‘ o (74,881) (55,504)
Affiliates . - ' (88978)  (104,047)
Fee and commission expense : ; e - (163,859) *_ (159,551)
_Net fee and commission income : S 61,117 33354

Fee types .
Markets Execution

Markets Execution fees are earned for 'execdting client transactions with various exchanges and over-the-

- counter markets and assisting clients With-clearing transactions. Markets Execution fees are recognised at
the point in-time the associated service has been tompleted which is generally the trade date of -the
transaction. . " ’ -

Markets Execution fees are earned by the Companyvas part of a collaborative arrangement with affiliated
entities. Collaborative arrangements are outside the scope of IFRS15 however are recognised following the-
revenue recognition pattern of the underlying activity in accordance with IFRS15 principles. The amounts
reported in Markets Execution fees are the Company’s gross revenues prior to the aIIocatlon to the affiliates
under transfer pricing and revenue sharing agreements y : '

Mana'gement and Advisory Fees

Advisory fees relate to research services to deliver differentiated market insight, 'actionable ideas and

~ collaborative services. The fees are recognised at the pointin time when the services related to the transaction
have been comp|eted under the terms of engagement and the related cost |s recognised as mcurred in fee'
and commission expense. :

Service fees from Affiliates.

Fee and commission income mcludes Sales credits revenues which are compensatlon for services prowded
. by the Company to an affiliate entlty Sales credlts are in scope of IFRS 15 and are generally recognised at
point in time when the services related to the transaction have been completed and the Company is entitled

"~ tothe compensatlon :
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Transfer pricing and reveriue share

" Transfer pricing expenses relate to a revenue allocation process (revénue sharing) between affiliate entities
for transactions where the affiliate entities mutually provide services to a customer. Profit sharing revenues
relate to a global profit split used to allocate net revenue for certain businesses when multiple affiliated
entities participate in delivering the service to customers, but it is not possible to determine an arm’s length

~ remuneration amount through a sales credit or transfer pricing process. Both transfer pricing and profit
sharing revenues are collaborative arrangements outside:the scope of IFRS15 however are recognised
following the revenue recognition pattern of the underlying activity in accordance with IFRS15 principles.

Fee and Commission Expense - Non Affiliates
S 4 )
There are no significant costs incurred to obtain the performance/execution contracts. Costs to fulfil the -

contracts include the execution fees and clearing fees charged by third parties, agents fees, brokerage paid
and the registry/messaging services fees, which are recognised as incurred. There are no other costs that are
incurred to generate or enhance resources to satisfy future performance obligations. o

 Fee and Commission Expense - Affiliates

Fee and commission expenses paid to affiliates include Sales credits paid to-affiliates for sales services
provnded to the Company. These sales services are directly incremental to the Company generatmg income,
which include both fee and commission income and net trading i income.

) :Remaining performance obligations

The Company applies the practical éxpedient of IFRS 15 and does not disclose information about remaining -
“performance obligétions that have original expected durations of one year or less or because the Company
has a right to consideration that corresponds directly with the value of the service provided to the client-or
_customer. Upon review, the Company deterrnined that no material. remaining performance Ob|lgatIOI"IS arein
scope of the remaining performance obligations disclosure.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

The Company has no material contract assets or contract liabilities as at 31 December 2021

6. Nettrading income

2021 2020

Net trading income : A ' ‘ 671,374 627,190
: ’ 671,374 627,190

The amounts presented in the above table are net of transfer pricing arrangements and proﬁt shanng
agreements. -
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7. ‘ Credit'impairment

Impairment Recoveries Total 2021 lmpairme(nt Recoveries Total 2020

_ Loans and other receivables at

-amortised cost - . ‘ 3 = 151 (7) - (7)
~ Total Impairment ' . ‘ : , S
‘release/charges ' 151 — L1 (7) — A7)

Refer Note 30 for more details on impairment movements during the year.

8. Operating expenses

2021 2020
Operating expenses type: , S S
Recharges . S L - (257771) - (218332)
Auditor’s remuneration ‘ ' :
‘. - Audit of the Company's financial statements? S ' (91) (91)
- Other audit related services® a ' - ' (366) . (463)
Total : _ _ . __(258,228)  (218,886)

The operating expenses' of the Company, including staff costs and admi'nistrative costs, have been incurred
by parent/fellow subsidiary undertakings and recharged by way of management charges.

Notes
2 Compnses the fees for the statutory audit of the Company :
b Comprises services in relation to statutory and regulatory filings. These include audit services for the review of mtenm

f‘nancnal information.

Employees and key management, including Directors emoluments

The Company has no direct employees during 2021 and 2020. All staff employed in the business were
¢ontracted to BBPLC or Barclays Execution Services Limited. These costs are included in the recharges above.

. Disclosures of the Directors’ remuneration as required by the Compénies Act 2006 are as follows:

2021 2020

A_qqfeqate rémuneration in respect of qualifying services ‘ , (49) . - (60)
- Aggregate amounts receivable under long-term incentive schemes - — e =
Aggregate contributions due to Barclays Group Pension scheme — —

Total - ' . L (499 - (60)
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Key management personnel comp_ensétion

Key manégement personnel are those persohs having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Company, including the Directors of the Company listed on page 14.

The Executive Directors did not receive any emoluments; were not entitled to any benefits under Long Term
Incentive Schemes or the Share Value Plan and did not accrue any retirement benefits in respect of their
services to the Company during the year (2020: Nil). The Executive Directors are employed by another Group
company and their services to this Company are con5|dered incidental to other services provided.

Durmg the year, no Directors exercnsed optlons under the BPLC Sharesave scheme and Long Term Incentlve:
Schemes (2020: Nil). :

The Company has-made no 1oans, guarantees or other such dealmgs to its Dlrectors dunng the ‘year '

(2020: Nil)
9. Taxation _ - L , T
/[ ' ' 2021 - 2020
,.Major components of the tax expense o '
- Current tax charge: v . _ ST » :
- Currentyear - a ‘ S (141,075)  (125,998)
Adjustments for prior years . ’ : - : "~ (6,739)° (31,251)

(147,814) __ (157,249)

Deferred tax charge/(credit):

\

Current year R CT : ' 63 - 64
Adjustments for prior years . S _ = -
Rate change adjustment : L . (67) - (38)

' ' : (4) 26
Tax charge L - - . . : (147818) ___(157,223)

Leglslatlon has been. mtroduced to maintain the main rate for corporation tax at 19% to 25% from
1 April 2023, which was substantlvely enacted on 24 May 2021. As a result, relevant deferred tax balances
have been re-measured at a hybrld rate of 31.75% which includes a banking surcharge of 8%.

'
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" The table below shows the reconciliation between the actual tax charge and the tax charge that would result
from applying the standard:-UK'corporation tax rate to the Company’s profit before tax.

2021 2020 .

Profit before taxation 465,646 432,212
Tax charge based on the standard UK corporation tax rate of 27% ' : : '

(2020: 27%) L ' " (125724)  (116,697)

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable inclomev _

* Adjustments in respect of prior years (6,739) (31,251)

Non-creditable taxes including withholding taxes (18,604) (12,823)

- Non-taxable income (101) (2)

AT1 tax credit - 3417 3,588

Impact of change in tax rates - (67) (38)

S ‘ (147,818) (157,223)

Effective tax rate 31.7% 36.4%

The effective tax rate of 31.7% (2020: 36.4%) is greater than the UK statutory tax rate of 27% (being the .
aggregate of the 19% corporation tax rate and the 8% banking surcharge raté) due to (a) an adjustment in
respect of prior years, related to .ongoivng enquiries by European-tax authorities into withholding taxes and
(b) the fact that a portion of the withholding tax suffered on foreign dividends has been treated as non-
creditable for UK tax purposes and has been charged to the tax line in the year.

10. Cash and cash equivaleﬁts

 Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

2021 "~ 2020
846,286 864,070

" Bank'Balances

The Company holds monies on behalf-of some clients in accordance with the Client Money Rules issued by
the FCA. These client monies are separated from the Company’s funds and are held in segregated bank
accounts, and are excluded from the Balance Sheet of the Company as stated in Note 3(i). As at
31 December 2021, the Company’s client monies amounted to £60,605,985 (2020: £30,645,049).

11. Trading pqrtfolio
2021 ° 2020

] Trading portfolio assets . _

Equity securities 32,689,486 20,712,795
Debt securities 395,889 413,549
Total 33,085,375 21,126,344

Trading portfolio liabilities .

_Equity securities 17,560,005 14,143,812
Debt securities 39347 37,536
Total 17,599,352 . 14,181,348

" Refer to Note 26 for analysié of the fair values of these securities and the valuation methodology, Note 30 for

credit r?sk and Note 31 for maturity disclosures.

.
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12. Derivative financial instruments

Fair value

‘ Total derivatives held for tradinq

. : Fair value .

"~ As at 31 December 2021 . assets liabilities
Foreign exchange derivatives o R
Foreign exchange forwards 659,676 954,399
Foreign exchange options o, 15,382 2,566
Currency swaps : 46,969 87,067
Interest rate derivatives _ ' o
Interest rate swaps 284,266 244,587

' Equity and stock index derivatives S '
‘Options bought and sold 3,989,859 4,215,359
Swaps and forwards 3917266 3,866,176

"Exchange traded futures/ optlons ( bouqht/ sold) 3,176,101 2,8(_)7',231
Credit derivatives '
_ OTC swaps — 2,475
Total derivatives held for trading 12,089,519 12,179,860
. 'F‘air value - Fair value
As at 31 December 2020 assets liabilities
Foreign exchange derivatives . ‘

" Foreign exchange forwards - 66,250 70,515
Foreign exchange options 13,962 1,340
Currency swaps ' 20,835 22,026
Interest rate derivativ'es o
Interest rate swaps 501,224 353,745
Equnty and stock index derlvatuves : .

Options bought and sold . 2,614,612 3,301,775
Swaps and forwards 2,975,542 3,070,018
Exchange traded futures/ optlons (bought/ sold) 2,708,244 2,593,993

Credlt derlvatlves
“OTC swaps . . 237
8,900,669 9,413,649

Refer to Note 26 for analysis of the falr values of these derivatives and the valuatlon methodology, Note 30

for credlt risk and Note 31 for maturity disclosures.

13. Securities borrowing, securities lending, repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Reverse repurchase agreements (and stock borrowing or similar transactions) are a form of secured lending

whefeby the Company provides a loan or cash collateral in exchange for the transfer of collateral, generally

in the form of marketable securities subject to an agreement to transfer the securities back at a fixed price in 'A
- the future. Repurchase agreements are where the Company obtains such loans or cash collateral, in exchange
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“for the transfer of collateral. The securities are retained on the balance sheet as the Company retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. ‘

Repurchase agreements at amo,rtised cost

- 2020

2021
Non-current liabilities 7,356,833 8,140,936
Total 7,356,833 8,140,936
14. Financial assets mandatorily at fair value

- AN

2021 _ 2020
Current assets:
Debt securities 50,078 25,700 -
Loans and Advances 4,352,652 3,640,014
Reverse Repurchase agreements 52,921,055 42,659,562
Total 57,323,785 46,325,276
Non-current assets: _

" Debt securities 165,823 219,452
Loans and Advances 512,665 37,71
Reverse Repurchase agreements — 45,025
Total ) 678,488 - 302,188

- Debt securfties_ are mainly Notes issued by BBPLC and its s‘ubsidiaries, which the Company buys in the
secondary market in its capacity as market maker for the Notes. Refer Note 26 for analysis of the fair values
. of these instruments and the valuation methodology, Note 30 for credit nsk and Note 31 for maturity

disclosures.

15. Loans and other receivables _

2021

. 2020
Current assets: o
A Settlement balances 11,942,715 13,411,069
Other loans and receivables . 29,460,835 24,597,051
Total 41,403,550 38,008,120 . -
‘ Non-current assets: :
Other loans and receivables 49,571 49,819
Total 49, 571 49,819

The majority of the Company sloans and other receuvables are transactions with reIated parties consisting of

the Company's parent BBPLC and its subsidiaries (Note 34).
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' 16. Other assets

2021. 2020

Trade and other receivables - Financial ' : C . 164036 - 121,467
Trade and other receivables - Non Flnancual » : ‘ 66939 41,133
Total _ : : 230,975 162,600
17. Deferred tax liabilities
Th'e' following table shows the movemient on deferred tax liabilities during the year.
Prior year :
adjustmentto (Charge)/Credited . .
R : As at . Transitional .income “tolncome As at
Liabilities © 1-Jan-21 Adjustment statement ~ 'Statement  31-Dec-21
Other provisions =~ S (445) - - — ' (4) . (449) -
‘Deferred tax liabilities (445) — : —t - 4 (449)
Falling due in one year L - T h - —
Falling due after one year - - - : - L : (449) -
' ‘ A Prior year
. adjustment to  (Charge)/Credited
o o - Asat Transitional "income . tolncome . Asat
Liabilities 1-)Jan-20  Adjustment statement. Statement  31-Dec-20
Other provisions ) (471) — : — o 26 (445)
Deferred tax liabilities (471) : — — 26 (445)
Falling due in one year o ' : L . _ b—
Falling due after one year . _ . - ' (445)

Legislation has beenintroduced to increase the main rate of corpor‘atibn tax from 19% to 25%, effective from
1 April 2023, which was substantively enacted.on 24 May 2021. As a result, relevant deferred tax balances
have been re-measured at a hybrid rate of 31.75% which includes a banking surcharge of 8%. ’

“Inthe 27 October 2021 UK Budget, the Chancellor confirmed a decrease in the bank surcharge from the
current 8% to 3% from April 2023. This change was substantively enacted post year end on 2 February 2022.
As a result the effective tax rate will reduce to 27.7% for the year 2023 and to-28.0% for the year 2024 and
onwards. This rate Change does not have a material impact on the deferred tax. balances.

There are no deferred income tax assets as of 31 December 2021 (2020: £1,611,417) which had not been
recognised on unused foreign tax credits to the extent that they are not regarded as recoverable in the
foreseeable future.
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18. Investment in subsidia'ry

- ‘ . ) Total proportion of Nominél
S _ Registered Office | * Classof Name of immediate value held by immediate
Name of Subsidiary |. Address Shares/ Units - © parent parent (%)
Barclays Capital 1 Churchill Place, bércia s Capital
. | Nominees (No. 2) London, E14 5HP, - | Ordinary Y p ; 100
L Securities Limited . .
Limited England . } ) .

~ Asat 31 December 2021, the carrymg value of investment in sub5|d|ary is £100 (2020: £100). Consohdated
f|nanC|aI statements have not been prepared See Note 1. .

19. Financial'liabilities mandatorily at fair value

Current liabilities

Contractual ' - Contractual

Fair Value = amount due on Fair Value amount due on

2021 maturity 2021 2020  maturity 2020

Deposits - : o - 1,834,603 1,834,591 - 1,732,779 ' 1,734,316
Repurchase agreements " ' 43,786,775 43,786,106 33,808,439 -33,797,888
Other financial liabilities : . T 54,07 © 54,286 3,646,558 3,644,932
Total 45,675,449 45,674,983 - 39,187,776 39,177,136

Non-current liabilities -

‘ Contractual o Contractual

Fair Value amount due on Fair Value amount due on
) . 2021 maturity 2021 2020 maturity 2020 -

Other financial liabilities . ' 509,081 536,417 1,350,983 71,361,466

Total 509,081 . 536,417 1,350,983 1,361,466

Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair value are primarily made up of Intercompany deposits, fepurchase
agreements and fully funded derivatives. Refer to Note 26 for analysis of the fair values of these instruments
- and the'valuation methodology and Note 31 for maturity dlsclosures
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~20. Borrowings.

» 2021 2020
Current liabilities: L ' A :

Bank loans and overdrafts L ' - 43,470,991 28,323,218
Other borrewings =~ - . h 1,363 38,232
Settlement balances " . ' ~ _ 14,068,249 - 13,035,790

" Total . : ’ " 57540,603 41,397,240

Non-current liabilities: - .
Bank loans and overdrafts S ' 2,431,577 49,813 -
*_Other borrowings R A 300,000 300,000
349,813

Total- : . - ' » 2,731,577

The majonty of the Company’s borrowmgs have a contractual maturity of not more than three months

(Note 31).

Other bOrfowihgs include subordinvatéd callable notes issued to BBPLC in tWo tranches of £150m each with -
- a contractual maturity of five to ten years (Note 31 and 33). These are redeemable by the Company on
-providing a notice of not less than 30 days to BBPLC. Subordinated debt amountmg to €17m and US$24.5m

worth £33m (2020: £34m) wnth BBPLC were _redeemed during the year.

The majority of the Company’s borrowmgs are transactions with related parties compnsmg of BBPLC and |ts

subS|d|ar|es (Note 34). The fair value of borrowings is set out in Note 26.

21. cher liabilities

2021,

A , , . 2020

. Trade & other payables - Financial - . : . 324,956 251,945
Trade & other payables Non Fmanaal ' 14,145 12,710 ’
Total L : . ‘ . _ 339,101 264,655
22. Current tax liabilities

A 2021 2020
Current tax liabilities are as follows: _ A .
UK corporation tax payable ' : — 83,077 65,245
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23. Shareholders’ equity
(i) Sharecabifal

Particulars of the Company’s share capital were as follows:

. . . 2021 - 2020
Authorized 650,000,000 Ordinary shares o 650,000 650,000
1,000 non-cumulative preference shares ‘ . . : B 1 1
661,499,000 Redeemable non-cumulative preference shares K 661,499 661,499
As at 31 December - - 1,311,500 1,311,500
Allotted and fully paid -~ - o
571,070,000 Ordinary shares : ’ : . © 571,070 571,070 -
1,000 non-cumulative preference shares v E _ 1 , 1

. As at 31 December _ - 571,071 571,071

The par value of the ordmary shares is £1 each. The par value of the preference shares is £1 each. All issued
'shares are fully paid. : : :

Preference shares have priority over ordinary shares in the payment of dividends or in the event of a winding
up. , . , . 4 .

The ordmary shareholders are entitled to vote at any general meetmg of the Company, whereas the preference
shareholders have no voting rights. - ‘

(i) Other equity instruments

" The Conﬁpany‘issued floating rate perpetual subordinated write down securities (AT1 securities) during the
year 2019. The AT1 securities are perpetual securities with no fixed maturity and are structured to qualify as
AT1 instruments inder prevailing capital rules applicable as at the relevant issue date.

Initial call date 2021 - 2020

Additional Tier 1 (AT1) securities issuance ' 2024 - ’ 200,000 200,000
As at 31 December- ) - ' ‘ ' 200,000 200,000

The principal terms of the AT1 securities are described below:

« AT1 securities rank behind the claims against the Company -of 1) unsubordinated creditors; 2) claims
" which are expressed to be subordmated to the claims of unsubordinated creditors of the Company but no
further or otherwise; 3) claims which are in.respect of any secondary non preferentlal debts; 4) claims
which are, or are expressed to be, junior to the claims of other creditors of the Company, whether
subordinated or unsubordinated, other than those whose claims rank; or are expressed to rank, pari passu
“with, or junior to, the claims of the Holders of the AT1 securities.

= AT1 securities bear a ﬂoatmg rate of interest. Interest on the AT1 securltres is due and payable only at the
sole discretion of the Company, and the Company shall have sole and absolute discretion at all times and
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for any reason to cancel (|n whole or in part) any mterest payment that would otherwise be payable on
any interest payment date. . '

= AT1 securitie$ are undated and are redeemable at the option of the Company, in whole or in part five years
from the date of issue and every three months thereafter. In addition, the AT1 securities are redeemable,
at the option of the Company, in whole in the event of certainchanges in the tax or regulatory treatment
of the AT1 securities. Any redemptlons require the prior consent of the PRA.

« Should the CET1 ratio of the Company fall below 7%, the AT1 securities are mevocably written down by -
an amount equal to the lower of 1) the amount necessary to generate sufficient CET1 capntal to restore
the Company s CET1 ratio toat Ieast 7%, or 2) the amount that would reduce the prlnc:pal amount ofthe '
AT1 securities to zero.

The Company's parent BBPLC has the 100% ownership of all other equity instruments issued by the Co'mpan}
(iii) Dividends

: \ B .
No dividends were paid out during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) on ordinary shares
and the Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend (2020: Nil).

24. Other reserves

2021 ' 2020

Capital redemption reserve ' . © 7 250,000 © 250,000
Total . . - R 250,000 250,000

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve has been created. in relation to the redemptaon of preference shares dunng

the year 2019. -

25. Interest in structured entities

‘A structured entity is an entity in which voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding which
" entity controls it. Structured entities are generally created to achleve a narrow and well defined objectlve and
there are specific restrictions around their ongoing activities.

Unconsolidated structured entities

The Company may hold interests in-structured entities it would not have to consolidate even if cdnsolidated
financial statements were prepared; and where it holds no interests in structured entities, (it may have
‘'sponsored the entity. The nature and extent of its interests in unconsolidated structured entities, and the risks
associated with its interest in those entities are set out below. ’

Unconsolidated structured entities in which the Co}npany has an interest -

An interest in a structured entity is any form-of contractual or non-contractual involvement which creates
‘variability in returns arising from the performance of the structured entity for the Company but which it is
not able to influence or is insufficient to lead to the consolidation.of the structured entity. Such interests .
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include but are not limited to holdings of debt or equity securities, derivatives that transfer financial risks to
_ the Company, and in some cases financial gUarantees and investment management fee agreements. At .
market, plain-vanilla interest rate swaps and derivatives that are determined to introdu_ce risk to a structured
‘entity are not considered to be an interest in an entity. _ - '

The level of risk that the Company is exposed to is determined by the nature and purpose of it holding an
_interest in the entity. ‘ . :

Due to the large number of structured entities in which the Company holds interests, information about such
entities has been provided summarised by the purpose of the entities, other than where the Company holds
interests in a structured entity or is exposed to losses from a structured entity that are individually signiﬁcant ,
where more information is given. Significance is méasured by reference to the greater of the carrying amount
of the interest, or the maximum exposure to loss. ' i

Interest rate swaps, f‘oreigh exchange derivatives that are not complex and which expose the Company to
ins'ignificant'credit risk by being senior in the payment waterfall of a securitisation and derivatives that are
determined to introduce risk or variability to a structured entity are not considered to be an interest in an_
entity and have been excluded from the disclosures below. .

Maximum exposure to loss ,

Unless specified otherwise below, the Company’s-maximum exposure to loss is the value of its on-balance
sheet positions. Exposure to loss is mitigated-through collateral, the ‘availability of netting and credit
" protection held.

Summary of interests in unconsolidated structured entities:
As at 31 December 2021

-Secured Tfaded )
Nature of interest : Balance Sheet line item ) ) o Total
. : . : ) Financing  Derivatives
. > . . I . . .
Reverse repurchase agreements Fmaﬁcua assets mandatorily . .1,026,132. = 1,026,132
at fair value » .

. - f . . e _ . . . . )
Derivative financial instruments Penyatnve financial 2.470 2,470
assets - : - instruments. _

Total on balance sheet exposures . ' 1,026132° -~ 2,470 1,028,602
As at 31 December 2020 )
Co _ ' Secured Traded -
Nature of interest Balance Sheet line item ) o Total
. . . . - Financing Derivatives .
, * Financial assets mandatorily ) _— :
Reverse repurchase agreements .t fair value - o 947,578 - 947,578
. Derivative financial instruments -  Derivative financial _ '
‘assets - instruments - o -
Total on balance sheet exposures ' , 947578 © — 947,578
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Secured financing

The Company routinely enters into reverse repurchase contracts, stock borrowing and similar arrangements
on normal commercial terms where the counterparty to the arrangement is a structured entity. Due to the
nature of these arrangements, especially the transfer of collateral and on-going margmmg, the Company has
minimal exposure to the performance of the structured entlty counterparty

Traded derivatives i

The Company enters intoa variety of derivative contracts with structured entities which reference market risk
variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and credit indices amongst other things. The risk of
loss may be mitigated through on- -going margining requirements as well as a fight to cash ﬂows from the
"~ structured entity which are senior in the payment waterfall: Such margining requirements are consistent with
market practice for many derivative arrangements and in line with the Company’s normal credit policies.

Total notional contract amounts in respect of these derivatives were £2,627m' (2'020: Nil)..

Notional amounts of the derivative arrangements have been provided as a better indication of the risks
associated with these instruments rather than the size of the structured entities to which the Company has
exposure. ' " ' ' '
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- 26. Fair value of financial instruments

All f’nanaal mstruments are initially recognised at fair vaIue on the date of recognltlon and, dependmg on the
classifi cation of the asset or liability, may continue to be held at fair value either through profitor loss or other

~ comprehensive income. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer aliability in an orderly transaction between market partlapants at the measurement
date. '

Wherever possible, fair value is determined by reference to a quoted market price for that instrument. For -
--many of the Cempany’s financial assets and liabilities, especially derivatives, quoted prices are not available,
-and valuation models are used to estimate fair value. The models calculate the expected cash flows under
the terms of each specific contract, and then discount these values back to a present value. These models
use as their basis independently sourced market parameters including, for example, interest rate yreld curves,
equltles and commodntres prices, optron volatilities and currency rates.

For financial liabilities held at fair value, the carrying amount reﬂ_ects the effect on fair value of changes in
own credit spreads derived from observable market data, such as spreads on Barclays issued bonds or credit
default swaps (CDS). Most market parameters are either directly observable or are implied from instrument
prices. The model may perform numerical procedures in the pricing such as interpolation when input values
do not directly correspond to the most activety traded- market trade parameters. ‘ E
-On initial recognition, it is presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless there is observable
information available in an active market-to the contrary. The best evidence of an instrument’s fair value on
- initial recognition is typically the transaction price. However, if fair value can be evidenced by comparison
"with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument, or.is based on a valuation
A technlque whose inputs include only data from observable markets, . then the instrument should be
. recognised at the fair value derlved from such observable market data ‘

For valuations that have rnade use of unobservable inputs, the difference between-the model valuation 'and
the initial transaction price (‘Day One proﬁt’)vis recognised in profit or loss either:

- ona straight-line basis over the term of the transaction; or over the penod untll all model 1nputs will
become observable where appropnate or ‘ '

-~ released in full when previously unobservable inputs become observable.
In case of ‘Day one loss’ the same is recognised. upfront in the profit or loss.

' Various factors influence the availability of observable inputs and these may vary from product to product
and change over time. Factors include the depth of activity in the relevant market, the type of product,
whethér the product'is new and not widely traded in the marketplace, the maturity of market modelling and
the nature of the transaction (bespoke or generic). To the extent that valuation is based on models or.inputs
that are not observable in the market, the determination of fair value can be more subjective, dependent on
‘the significance of the unobservable input to the overall valuation. Unobservable inputs are determined based
on the best information avarlable for example by reference to similar assets, similar maturities or other
analytical technrques
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The sensmwty of valuatlons used in the financial statements to possible changes in signifi cant unobservable
inputs is shown on page 60. : :

Critical ac'counting estimates and judgements

The valuation of financial instruments often involves a significant degree of judgement and complexity, in
particular where valuation models make use of unobservable inputs (‘Level 3’ assets and liabilities). This note _'

- provides information on-these instruments, including the related unrealised gains and losses recognised in
the period, a descnption of -significant valuation techniques and’ unobsen/able inputs, and a sensitivity
analy5|s

Valuation

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requlres an entity to cla55|fy its assets and Ilabilitles accordmg toa hlerarchy
that reflects the observablhty of significant market mputs The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are
defined below.

Quoted market prices — Level 1

. ¥ . is
Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active market. Such instruments
are valued by.reference to unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where
the quoted price is readily. available, and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market
transactlons An active market is onein which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to
provide pncmg mformatnon on an ongoing basis. '

Valuation technique using observable inputs —Level 2 , L

Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are observable in an
active market. Valuations based on -observable inputs include assets and liabilities such as swaps and
forwards 'which are valued using market standard pricing techniques, and options that are commonly traded
in markets where all the inputs to the market standard pricing models are observable. Level 2 valuation
techniques can also include unobservable inputs that are not significant of the fair value measurement inits -
entirety.

Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs - Level 3

Assets and Ii'ab_ilitiesare classified as Level 3 if-their valuation incorpo’ratessignificént'inputs that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)..‘A valuation input is considered observable if it can

be diréctly observed from' transactions in an active market, or if there is compelling external evidence

demdnstrating an executable exit price. Unobservable input levels are generally determined via reference to
~ observable inputs, historical observations or using other analytical techniques.

~
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The following, table shows the Company s assets and Ilablhtues that are held at fair value dlsaggregated by
valuation technique (fair value hierarchy) and balance sheet classification:

Assets and liabilities reclassiﬁed between Level 1 and Level 2

Quoted market Observable Significant -
prices inputs  unobservable inputs
As at 31 December 2021 (Level 1) (Level 2) ‘(Level 3) . Total
Financial assets: '
Trading portfolio assets - 31,713,843 1,225,979 145,553 '. 33,085,375
. Derivative financial assets — 11,686,925 . 402,594 "12,089,519
Financial assets at fair value — 58,002,273 — 58,002,273
Total assets 31,713,843 70,915,177 548,147 103,177,167 -
' Quoted market Observable Significant
prices inputs "unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level.2) (Level 3) Total
Financial liabilities -
Trading portfolio liabilities . (17,301,854) (297,498)° — (17,599,352)
" Derivative financial fliabilities R— (11,796,399) (383,461) - (12,179,860)
Financial liabilities at fair value - (46,184,530) ' —  (46,184,530) .
Total liabilities 2 (17,301,854) (58,278,427) (383,461) (75,9'63,742)
. Quoted market Observable Significant
. prices inputs  unobservable inputs - :
As at 31 December 2020 - “(Level 1) - (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Financial assets . .
Trading pbrtfolib assets 19,808,876 1,184,007 133,461 21,126,344
Derivative financial assets — 8,731,091 169,578 8,900,669
Financial assets at fair value — 46,627,464 — 46,627,464
’ Tgtal assets 19,808,876 56,542,562 303,039 76,654,477
Quoted market Observable ) Significant
prices inputs - unobservable inputs
" (Level 1) . (Level 2) (Level 3) - Total
Financial liabilities . .
Trading portfolio Ilablhtles _ (13,932,229) (249,119) . — (14,181,348)
" Derivative financial liabilities ° — (9,145,618) (268,031) (9,413,649) .
Financial liabilities at fair value —. (40,538,759) o — (40,538,759)
- Total liabilities (13,932,229) (49,933,496) (268,031)  (64,133,756)

During the penod there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 (2020: there were no transfers between

Level 1 and Level 2)..
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Level 3 movement analysis

The following table summarises the movements in the level 3 balances dljring the year. The table shows gains

and losses and includes amounts for all assets and liabilities transferred to and from level 3 during the year.

Trading portfolio is disclosed on net basis as the Trading portfolio liabilities balance is"im'material. Transfers
. have been reflected as if they.have taken place at the beginning of the year.

Asset and 'Iiabi'Iity transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 are primarily due to i) an increase or decrease in
observable market activity related to an-input or ii) a change in the significance of the unobservable input,
 with assets and |labl|ltIeS cIassnf ed as Level 3 if an unobservable input is deemed significant.

Analysis of movements in level 3 assets and liabilities -

Total gains.
and losses in
“the y'ear, S .
As at ‘1  recognised in ’ As at 31
lanuary . _ the income Transfers December
. 2021 Purchases Salesv Settlements Issues statement In/(out)® - 2021
Net trading _
portfolio assets
(Equity cash . : . _ .
. products) 133,461 15378 (10,557) (237) — . 7508 e 145,553
Net derivative '
financial
instruments.. - )
(Equity ) S
derivatives) (98,453) 21,203 - — ‘ - 88,644 7,739 19,133
.. Tofal 35,008 36,581 (10,557) .(237) — 96,152 - 7,739 - 164,686
: ' Total gains = ‘
and lossesin’’
: the'year ‘ :
Asatl recognised in As at31
January the income Transfers December
2020 Purchases Sales Settlements Issues .o one In/(out)® - - 2020 .
‘Net trading
portfolio assets
(Equity cash , ' : . .
products) 218,635 5929 (142,541) S — 51438 - — - 133461
+ Net derivative '
~ financial
instruments )
(Equity . o : g : . - :
derivatives) - 54837 (47,261) (629) 599 — (101,139) (4,860) - (98,453)

Total - 273,472 (41,332) (143,170) 599 — (49,701)  (4,860) -35,008

aNil transfers out for the year (2020: hil) _
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Valuation techniqueé and sensitivity analysis

Sensrtrvrty analysis is performed on products with significant unobservable rnputs (Level 3) to generate a
range of reasonably possnble alternatrve valuations. The sensitivity methodologies applied take account of
the nature of valuation techniques used, as well as the availability and reliability of observable proxy and
historical data and the impact of using alternatrve ‘models.

Sensitivities are dynamically calculated on a monthly basis. The calculation is based on range or spread data
of a reliable reference source or a scenario based on relevant market analysis alongside the impact of using
alternative models. Sensitivities are calculated without reflecting the impact of any diversification in the
portfolio. : ‘ o '

-~

The valuation techniques used, observabrlrty and sensitivity analysis for matenal products wrthln Level 3, are
described below o _ . ‘ : : '

Equity derivatives

Description: Exchange traded or OTC derivatives Ilnked to equity indices and single names. The category .
includes vanilla and exotic equity products

Valuation: Equity de’rivatives are valued using industry standard models. Valuation inputs include stock
prices, dividends, -volatilities, interest rates, equity repurchase curves and for multi-asset products,
correlatrons '

- Observability: In general, valuation inputs are obéervable'up to Iicjuid maturities which are determined -
.separately for each input .and underlying. Unobservable inputs are set by referencing liquid market
instruments and applying extrapolation techniques, or inferred via another reasonable method. '

Equity cash products-.
' Description: Includes listed equities, Exchange Traded Funds (ETF) and preference shares.
Valuation: \/aluation of equity cash products is primarily determined through market obse'rvable prices.

Observab/llty Prices for actlvely traded equrty cash products are considered observable Unobservable equrty
prices are generally’ determined by reference to actrvely traded instruments that are. similar in nature; or
inferred via.another reasonable method.

Unrealised gains and Iosses‘ on Level 3 financial assets and liabilities

The following table discloses the unrealised géins and losses recognised in income statement within net
trading income for the year, arising on Level 3 financial assets and liabilities held at year end. '

" Asat 31 December. . . ' : 2021 2020

Net trading portfolio assets . o ; , 7,508 54,731
Net derivative financial mstruments N : ' 88,644 (26,466)

Total - _ 96,152 28,265
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Significant unobservable inputs

The following table discloses the valuatlon techniques and significant- unobservable inputs for Derivative
Financial Instruments at fair value and classuﬁed as Level 3 along with the range of values used for those
- significant unobservable mputs : ‘ '

20271 - : 2020
4 Range . - Range
* -Valuation . - Significant S : ,
technique(s)® unobservable inputs Min Max Min. Max ~  Units
Option model . Equity volatility - 3 90 14 102 %
~ Equity-equity o : ' )
correlation , 40 @ - 97 : 25 ‘93 . %

Discounted cash Co o
flow Discounted margm (129) 75 - (152) ' 475

2 Arrange has not been provided for Net Asset Value as there would be a wide range reflecting the diverse nature of the

Bps

positions.

The following' section describes the significant unobservable inputs identified in the table above, and the .
_ sensitivity of fair value measurement of the instruments categorised as Level 3 assets or liabilities to increases
in significant unobservable 'inputs. Where sensitivities are described, the inverse relationship will also

generally apply.

Where reliable interrelationships can be identified between significant unobservable mputs used in fair vaIue
. measurement a description of those |nterreIat|onsh|ps is included below.

Forwards
" A price or rate that is applicable to a financial transaction that will take place in the future. -

In general, a significant increase in a forward in isolation will result in a fair value increase for the contracted
receiver of the underlying (currency, bond commodlty, etc.), but the sensitivity is dependent on the specific
. terms of the mstrument v . e,

' Volatility '

Volatility is a measure of the variability or uncertainty in return for a given derivative underlying Itis an
estimate of how much a particular underlying instrument input or index will change in value over time. In
general volatilities are implied from observed option prices. For unobservable options the |mpI|ed voIat|I|ty
may reflect additional assumptions about the nature of the underlying risk, and the strike/ maturity profile of
a specific contract. » '

In general a significant increase in volatlllty in isolation WI|| result in a fair value increase for the holder of a
simple option, but the sensitivity is dependent on the specific terms of the instrument.
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There may be interrelationships between unobservable volatilities and other unobservable inputs (e.g. when
equity prices fall,implied equity volatilities generally rise) but these are generally. specrﬁc to mdrvrdual markets
and may vary over time. :

Correlation

‘Correlation is'a measure of the relationship between the movements of two variables. Correfation can be a
significant input into valuation of derivative contracts with more than one underlying instrument.

A srgnrﬁcant increase in correlatlon in |soIatron can result in a fair value increase or decrease dependlng on
the specific terms of the instrument.

Sensitivity of valuations using unobservable inputs

Level 3 sensitivity: Sensitivity is estimated based on the dispersion of consensus data services either directly
or through proxies. ‘

N

As part of risk management processes, an analysis is performed on products with signiﬁcant'unbbservable
parameters (Level 3) to generate a range of reasonably possible alternative valuations. The outcome of such
analysis, alongside considering the impact of using alternative models, would be to increase fair values by up
to £43,032,381 (2020: £31,200,374) or to decrease fair values by up to £44,9(')5;889 (2020: £31,957,000) with -
substantially all the potential effect impacting the income statement rather than reserves. The analysis takes
account of the nature of valuation technrques used, aswell as the availability and reliability of observable
proxy and historic data. :

Unrecognised gains as a result of the use of valuation models using unobservable inputs

The amount that has yet to be recognised'in income that relates to the difference between the transaction
price, i.e. the fair value at initial recognition, and the amount that would have arisen had valuation models
using unobservable mputs been used on initial recognition, less amounts subsequently recognised, was as

follows:

- - | 2021 2020
Asat1anuary : ' o ' 7,298 7,326
Additions in year : ’ T B - 4,104
Releases in year B _ : . (1,728) (1,905)
Amortisations in year : : . (346) - (2,227)
As at 31 December - .. . _ ] 5,224 7,298

Fair value adjustments

The value of fair value adjustments made related to Exit price adjustments derived from market bid-offer
spreads are £44,803,800 (2020: £38,647,000). The Company uses mid-market pricing where it is a market
maker and has the ability to transact at, or better than, mid-price (which is the case for certain-equity, bond
and vanilla derivative markets). For other fir\ancial assets and liabilities, bid-offer adjustments are recorded to
reflect the existing level for the expected close;out strategy. The methodology for determining the bid-offer . -
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adjustment for a derivative portfolio involves calculating the net nsk exposure by offsettlng long and short
posntlons by strike and term in accordance with the risk management and hedgmg strategy

Bid-offer levels are generally derived from market quotes such as broker data. Less liquid instruments may
not have a directly observable bid-offer level. In such instances, an exit price adjustment may be derived from
an observable bid-offer level for a comparable liquid instrument, or determined by calibrating to derivative
prices, or by scenario or historical analysis. ' :

Financial assets and liabilities not held at fair value

The fair value is an estimate of the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction-between market participants at'the measurement date. As a wide fange of valuation
techniques are often available, it may not be appropriate to directly compare this fair value information to
independent market or other financial-institutions. Different valuation methodolognes and assumptuons can
have a sngmf cant impact on fair values which are based on unobservable mputs

~ There is minimal difference between the fair value and carrying amount for assets and liabilities not held at
. fair value, since the exposures are either short termin nature or have interest rates that reprice frequently and
counterparties with high credit quality. ' g ‘ . -

" The following tables show the fair value of financial-assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost analysed
* by fair vaIue hierarchy and baIance sheet classnﬁcatlon

50,139,934

o Observable Significant

: : " Quoted market _ inputs  unobservable
As at 31 December 2021 Fair Value  prices (Level 1) (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Loans and other receivables . 41.453.121 — 41,453,121 —
Other financial assets ' 164,036 — 164,036 -
Total Assets ' 41,617,157 — 41,617,157 —
Borrowings 60,272,180 219,906 60,052,274 —
Repurchase agreements 7,356,833 — 7,356,833 —
Other financial liabilities 324,956 — 324,956 —
Total Liabilities 67,953,969 219,906 67,734,063 —
Observable Significant

Quoted market inputs  unobservable

As at 31 December 2020 Fair Value - prices (Level 1) . (Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Loans and other receivables 38.057.939 — 38.057.939 —_
Other financial assets . 121,467 — 121,467 —
Total Assets 38,179,406 — 38,179,406 —
.Borrowings 41,747,053 286,194 41,460,859 —
Repurchase agreements 8,140,936 — 8,140,936 —
Other financial liabilities 251,945 A — 251,945 —
Total Liabilities 286,194 49,853,740 —
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Financial assets‘ :

The carrying vaIue of financial assets held’ at amortlsed cost is determmed in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy (Note 3) ' : '

Loans and other receivables

There is minimal difference between the fair value and carrying amount due to the short term nature of the
lending and the high credit quality of counterparties. :

The fair value of loans and advances for the purpoée of this disclosure is derived from discounting expected
cash flows in a way that reflects the current market price for lending to issuers of similar credit quality and
hence the balances are classified as level 2. Settlement balances and cash collateral are also classified as
level 2.

Financial liabilities

The carrymg value of financial llablhtles held at amortused cost is determined in accordance with the
accounting policy (Note 3). .

Repurchase agreements

The fair value of repurchase agreements approximates carrying amounts as these balances .are generally
short dated. These balances are therefore classified as level 2.
Borrowings -

- The fair value hierarchy for borroWings is determined by reference to the observability of inputs into the fair
value models. Inputs into the fair value models are considered observable for example the Bank of England
base rate, and hence the balances are classified as level 2. Settlement Balances and Bank Loans are cIaSS|ﬁed ‘
as level 2. Nostro Liabilities are classified as level 1.
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27. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

In accordance with IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, the Company reports financial assets and fnancial liabilities on a net basis on the.balance.sheet only if .
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is intention to settle on a net bas:s. or'to reahse the asset and settle the liability
5|multaneously The following table shows the |mpact of netting arrangements on:

» all financial assets and liabilities that are reported net on the balance sheet

all derivative financial instruments and reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements and other s:mllar secured lending and borrowmg agreements that are

subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements but do not qualify for balance sheet netting.
\ N

The table identifies those amounts that are covered by enforceable netting arrangements (offsemng arrangements and financial coIIateraI) butdo not qualify for netting
, * under the' requirements of IAS32 described above. -

The ‘Net amounts’ presented below are not mtended to represent the Company’s actual exposure to credlt rlsk as a variety of credit mitigation strategies are employed
in addition to netting and collateral arrangements

. Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements’

" Related amounts not offset?

As at 31 December 2021 . . Balance sheet Amounts available Financial Financial Net amount’ Amounts not
: total' fornettingonthe . instruments - collateral subject to
balance sheet ) . : . enforceable netting
) ’ arrangements3’
: (a) ) v - (@ " - (d (e)(b}H)Hd) (f)=(a)~(b)
Derivative financial assets N : 12,089,519 T . 12,026,732 (11,904,305) — 122,427 62,787
Reverse repurchase agreements - 52,921,055 - 52,855,917 —  (52,797,390) 58,527 65,138
Total Assets : 65,010,574 64,882,649 (11,904,305)  (52,797.390) 180,954 127,925
Derivative financial liabilities S (12,179,860) (12,075,351) . 11,904,305 — (171,046) (104,509)
Repurchase agreements B (51,143,608) _ (51,069,322) — 51,048,344 (20,978) (74,286)
Total Liabilities . ' . (63,323,468) (63,144,673) . 11,904,305 51,048,344 (192,024) (178,795) ~
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/

Amounts subject to enforceable netting arrangements

As at 31 December 2020 Related amounts not offset? v .

e Balance sheet Amounts available Financial Financial Net amount + Amounts not

total' for netting on the instruments collatéral .. . subject to

. balance sheet ) . . ' enforceable netting

. Ll arrangements3

(a) (b) (c) . (d)  (e)=(bl(c}+(d) (f)=(a)-(b)

Derivative financial assets ’ . 8,900,669 8,898,349 . (8,898,349) C— . - 2,320

. Reverse repurchase agreemerits 42,704,587 42,585,658 - — (42,520718) 64940 - . 118,929

Total Assets . 51,605,256 51,484,007 (8,898,349)  (42,520,718) 64,940 121,249

Derivative financial liabilities - . (9,413,649) ' (9,386,537) . 8,898,349 —_ (488,188) (27112)
Regurchase agréements . (41,949,375) (41,865,242) I 41,784,293 (80,949) (84133) .

Total Liabilities (51,363,024) (51,251,779) 8,898,349. 41,784,293 {569,137) {111,245)

v The balance sheet total is the sum of ‘Amounts available for netting on the balance sheet’ that are subject to enforceable netting arrangements and ‘Amounts not subject to
enforceable netting arrangements. '
2

Financial collateral is reflected at its fair value, but has been limited to the net balance sheet éxposure 50 as not to include ahy over-collateralisation.
3

. This column includes contractual rights of set-off that are sub]éct to uncertainty under the laws of the relevant jurisdiction.

4 Settlement assets and liabilities have been offset amounting to £2,583m (2020: £2,609m).

Derivative assets and liabilities

The.Financial instruments’ column identifies financial assets and liabilities that are subject to set off under netting agreements, such as the ISDA master agreement or
derivative exchange or clearing counterparty agreements, whereby all outstanding transactions with the same counterparty can be offset and close-out netting applied
across all outstanding transaction covered by the agreements if an event of default or 6ther predetermined events occur.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

: . ./ :
Financial collateral typically comprises highlyliquid securities which are legally transferred and «can be liquidated in the event of counterparty default.
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28. _Financial risks

The Company’s activities are exposedto a variety of financial risks. These are credit risk, liquidity risk, capital
- risk and market risk (which includes foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk).

Consequently, the Company devotes considerable resources to maintaining effective controls to manage,

~ measure and mitigate each of these risks, and regularly reviews its risk management procedures and systems

to ensure that they continue to meet the needs of the busrness The Company uses denvatlve financial
“instruments to hedge certain risk exposures: '

‘The Board of Directors monitors the Company'’s financial risks and has responsibility for ensuring effective
- ‘risk management and control. ‘ :

Credit  Risk of the Company suffering financial loss if any of its. customers, clients or market
‘ counterpartles fail to fulfill thelr contractual obllgatrons to the Company. See Note 30 (Credlt
" risk). '

Ligutdity Risk that the Company, although solvent, either does not have sufficient financial resourceé
.available to meet its obligation as they fall due, or can secure such resources only at excessive
cost. This also. results in a firm’s inability to meet regulatory Irqurdlty requrrements See Note 31
(Liquidity risk). ) -

Capital Risk that the Company has insufficient capital resources, which could lead to (i) a failure to meet
regulatory requirements; or (i) an inability to support business activity and growth.

Market Risk of loss arising from' potential adverse changesin the valiie of the Company’s assets and .
liabilities from fluctuation in market variables mcludlng, but not limited to, interest rates, foreign
exchange equity prices, dividend expectatlon |mpI|ed volatlhty and asset correlatlons See Note

- 29 (Market risk management). '

Further Market Risk Factors

Risk factor ~ Description

Foreign exchange |mpact ofehanges in foreign exchange rates and volatilities. .

. Interest rate . Changes in the level or shape of interest rate expectations can impact prices of
' interest rate sensitive assets,-such as bonds and derivatives instruments like interest

Equity Risk due to changes in equity prices, volatilities and dividend yields, for example as .
S ‘part of trading activities. ' - '
Spread . - Difference between bond yields and swaps rates that arises when a business has -~
' positions in both bonds and interest rate/inflation derivatives instruments. Both assets

may trade at different levels but are fdndamentally exposed to similar risk.

Basis ‘ _ The impact of changes in interest rate tenor basis and cross currency basis and is
prnmanly generated asa result of tradrng activities.

65



DocuSign-Envelope ID: 83289035;C4F3-4371-9072-1A583CZFD7E7

Barclays Capital Securities erlted :
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 ¢
_Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand _ ‘ '

29. Market risk
»Market risk management |

_ Market risk is the risk of loss arising from potential adverse changes in the value of the Company’s assets'and,- '
liabilities from fluctuation in.market variables including, but not limited to, interest rates, foreign-exchange,

_equity prices, dividend expectation, implied volatility and asset correlations. The Company has exposure to
market risk through traded and non’-traded market risk and can be impacted by changes in both the level and
volatility'of prices e.g. interest rates, credit spreads, equity prices and'foreign‘ exchange rates. The Company

“has implemented a-range of risk management methods to mitigate and control these and other market risks
to which the Company is exposed. However, it is difficult to predict with accuracybthe' changes in economic
or market conditions and to antrcrpate the effects that such changes could have on the Company’s financial
performance

Regulatory Value at Risk (‘Regulatory VaR’)

Regulatory VaR is an estlmate of the potential loss arising from unfavourable market movements calibrated
t0 a 99% confidence level over a 10-day holding period. '

‘Model review and Regulatory Back - testing

Value at Risk is an important market risk measurement and control tool for the Company and is regularly
assessed and reviewed internally by Group'Executlve and'dedvicated Model Risk Management {(MRM)
function. Barclays Group’s VaR model has been approved by the PRA to calculate regulatory capital for
desngnated tradrng book portfollos

: . 1]
There are a number of regulatory- measures which\the Company has. permission. to use in calculating
regulatory capital (internal models approval). These mclude Regulatory VaR, Stressed VaR (“SVaR”) and

lncremental Risk Charge (“IRC").

Regulatory back-testing counts the number of days when a loss (as. defi ned by the PRA) exceeds the
corresponding VaR estimate, measured at the 99% regulatory confidence level. Durlng 2021, the Company
experiericed one back- testmg exceptions which was driven by month end valuation adjustments The

number of back-testing exceptlons is not considered as indicating any concerns with the VaR-model. The .

sectron on Model review and back testing is unaudited.
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The table below shows the regulatory VaR statistics for the Company'é trading activities:

2021 - ' 2020

Regulatory VaR (99%) 4 ‘

‘ Average 2021 High 2021Low  Average 2020 High 2020 Low
Interestraterisk . 680 . 2394 346 821 1,715 467
Equities risk 9,408 25,029 . 4,354 1,457 24,961 2,125
Foreign exchange risk 2,400 4,163 314 1139 3,111 312
Basis risk 2,342 4726 - - 491 1,076 - 1,886 - 703
Diversiﬁcation effect -~ (4,407) n/a - nf/a = (2,593) . n/a n/a
Total Regulatory VaR 10,423 23,830 . 6,476 11,900 25,424 2,193

* Note: The high and low regulatory VaR figures reported for each category did not necessarily occur on the-
same day as the high and low regulatory VaR reported as a whole. Co-nsequently,.a diversification effect
balance for the high and low regulatory VaR figures would not be meaningful and is therefore omitted from
the above table. Basis risk reported in 2021 includes the cross currency basis risk.

Stressed Value at Risk (‘SVéRf)

SVaR is an estimate of the. potential loss arising from unfavourable market movements in a stressed
environment and is identical to Regulatory VaR, but calibrated over a one-year stressed period.

For regulatory capital calculation purposes the Company computes a market risk capital requirement based

_on aten-day, 99% VaR metric calibrated to a period of significant financial stress. This Stressed VaR (‘SVaR’):

' capltal requurement is added to the market risk capital- requirement arising from regulatory VaR and the
Incremental Risk Charge on an undiversified basrs

Incremental Risk Charge (‘IRC')

IRC is an estimate of the incremental risk arising from rating migrations and defaults beyond what is already

captured in Regulatory VaR and SVaR for the non-correlation trading portfolio. IRC measures this risk at a

99.9% confidence level with a one year holdirig period and applies to all positions in scope for specific risk .
including sovereign exposure. A 4

£'000
2021 ' 2020
Average 2021 High 2021Low  Average 2020 High 2020 Low
SVaR (99%) 12,764 23,092 8316 19,557 36,697 - 4250
IRC (99.9%) ‘ 336 - - 480 69 977 . 1,558 72

' Management of risks not fully captured in models, including Risks not in VaR (RNIVs)

In some instances, the Regulatory VaR model may not appropriately measure some market risks, especially -

where market mioves are not directly observable via prices, the Company has policies to ensure that add-ons . -

are applied where risks are not captured by the model. RNIVs refer to those key risks that are not captured,
or not adequately captured, in Regulatory VaR and SVaR.
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30. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Company’s customers or market
counterparties fail to fulfill their contractual obligations to the Company.' .

Collateral can be an important mitigant of credit risk and the Company. commonly obtains security for the
funds advanced. When' collateral is deemed appropriate, the Company takes a specific, agreed class of
collateral. Alternatively, the Company may put in place other forms of crednt risk mmgatlon such as the use
of credit derivatives. ’

Credit risk also arises through downgrading of counterparties whose credit instruments the Company may -
be holding, causing the value of those assets to fall. Furthermore, credit risk is manifested as country risk
where difficulties experienced by the country in.which the exposure is domiciled may impede payment or
reduce the vaIue of the asset or where the counterparty may be the country itself. Settlement risk is another
- special form of credit risk which.is the possibility that the Company may pay a counterparty, for example - a
bank i in a foreign exchange transaction, and fail to receive the corresponding settlement in return.

-The Company employs a range of risk measurement techniques and methodologies to mitigate credit risk.
The majority of the Company’s loans and other receivables are secured by collateral in the form of securities
_or are with other Barclays entities. The Company has master nettmg agreements in place which reduces the’
exposure in respect of derivative balances.

-~ This anallysis and all subsequent analyses oferedit risk include only financial assets subject to credit risk. They' :
exclude other financial assets, malnly equity securities held in. the trading portfoho as well as non-financial
assets

Credit risk concentrations by geographical sector

The geographical analysis is based on the location of Atﬁecustor-ner to whiich the lending is made.

. Africa &
: : ~ United : o ‘ - Middle

As at 31 December 2021 © - Kingdom . Europe Americas “Asia’ . East " Total
Cash and cash equivalents 75261 137519 140,034 415034 78438 846,286
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 45,476 31 0,292 3,331 © 4610 32,180 395,889
Derivative financial assets 11,799,027 269,002 . — 21,490 . — 12,089,519
Loans and other receivables 32,834,196 2,030,071 - 878,902 5614409 95543 41,453,121
Other financial assets =~~~ - 134126 19,809 6,441 3231 429 164,036
Financial assets mandatorily at ' S

fair value : 50,212,103 1,170,526 5287728 1275167 56,749 58,002,273
Total Assets 95100,189 3,937,219 6,316,436 7,333,941 263, 339 112,951,124
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, o Africa &

4 A . United ' : Middle
As at 31 December 2020 - Kingdom = Europe Americas “-Asia East Total
Cash and cash equivalents = ' 43,705 293,895 - 103,480 v41_3,-058 9,932 864,070
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 146,107 4 308593 = 7773 - 882 . 50,194 413,549
Derivative financial assets 8,819,775 80,355 528 1 — 8900669
Loans and other receivables 28,283,273 .1,342,663 1,018,828 7,379,751 33,423 38,057,938
Othef financial assets 99,714 16465 2,654 2354. . 280 121,467
Financial assets mandatorily : . » - . !
at fair value : ' 34,793,944 1,153,754 6,409,828 4,215,858 54,080 46,627,464
Total Assets - 72,086,518 3,195,725 Z543,0914 12,011,914 147,909 94,985,157 -

+
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Credit risk (co_ntinued)

Credit risk cbncgntration by industrial sector

Financial

Wholesale &

" Financial . Postal &
. institutions- institutions- Manufactu  Mining & . Energy & retall communic- ° Business &

As at 31 December 2021 Government Bank others .. -ring Quarrying Property water  distribution Transport atlon other services Total

Cash and cash equivalents. — 690,537" 155.749‘ — — — — — — - — 846,286

Trading portfolio assets {debt) 1.299 1,968 19,381 111,831, 6,598 16,327 - 9,497 88,253 451 . 72753 63,471 395,889

Derivative financial asséts T — 12084441, 25,078 - - — - - — — — 12,089,579

Loans and other receivables — 32410401 9,023,557 - - - —_ 10,592 - — 8571 414533121 ’

Other financial assets - 2'5.863 138173 - —_ —_ - — — —— - 164,036 .

Financial assets mandatorily at . a X

fair value — 48,788,566 9,148,347 - - — - — — — 65360 58,002,273

. Total Assets 1,299 93,981,776 18,510,285 111,831 . 6,598 16,327 9,497 . 98,845 4,51 72,753 137,402 112,951,124
Financial . Financial - Wholesale & Postal & Busine\ss &
. institutions- institutions- Manufactu-  Mining & - Energy & retail communic- other

As at 31 December 2020 Government * Bénk others ring Quairylng Property water _ distribution Transport " ation services Total
! Cash and cash equivalents - 684,130 179,940 —_ - — - — — — —_ 864,070

Tr;?dlng portfolio assets (debt) 1,407 1,003 22,638 93,192 . 59,630 28,789 30,658 45,243 1,854 '57.598 51,737 413,549

Derivative financial assets — 8,900,600 . 69 — - = — — — — — -~ 85900669

Loans and other receivables — 26,649,177 11,407,054 — - - - — — - 1,707 38,057,938

Other financial assets - . 21,992 99,475 - — - - - - - — 121467

Financial assets mandatorily at c

fair value 33,797 34,200,875 12,378,339 — — — — —_ — — 14,453 46,627,464

Total Assets 35,204 70,467,777 24,087,515 59,630 28,789 30,658 45,243 11,854 757,398 67,897 94,985,157

- 93,192
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- Trading portfolio assets/financial assets designated at fair value - The Company’s practice is to take into.
account credit risk when valuing these assets. The Company therefore expects little additional credit risk on
these instruments, other than the credit risk component of trading market risk on these instruments. The
_trading market risk is monitored through the Daily Value at Risk (‘DVaR’) methodology.

. In addition, many of the trading portfolros held are of very hrgh quality, and include, for example, treasury bills
and government bonds

- Derivative financial instruments — In addition to mcludmg the credit rrsk on these instruments in the DVaR
methodology, the:Company-also uses a number of other techniques to reduce its exposure to credit risk on
these instruments. These techmques include master netting agreements, which do not qualify for offset

* under IAS 32 but which give a legally enforceable right to riet receivables ‘and payables with the same
‘counterparty, and the obtarnrng of cash collateral from counterparties who have a net exposure to the
Company through Collateral Service Agreements.

‘Loans and other receivables — Loans and other receivables are spread across both geographical regions,
maturity and individual counterparties. Analysis by geography, industry, staging analysis, L&A and
impairment movement over time and maturity, based on counterparties details, may be found on Note 30 on _
pages 68 to 73. ' : '

Financial assets at fair value mainly include Reverse repurchase agreemerits largely secured by obtaining
collateral from counterparties. The level of collateral is monitored darly for the: coIIateraI calls made or
‘required. ‘ '

The Company has secured a guarantee of £1bn (2020: £1bn) from its parent company BBPLC, to cover
exposures arising from counterparty credit risk. The guarantee would be applied against all exposures
" covered under Article 389 of the CRR, except in cases where the eligible counterparty is a direct or indirect-
subsidiary of BPLC, andiis not a sovereign which would receive a 0% risk weighting under the standardised
approach in each case as determined by the Company. The exposures include the effects of netting where
there'is a master netting agreement in place or where the Company holds cash collateral. The guarantee does
not expire unless mutually agreed between the Company and-BBPLC to terminate this guarantee
arrangement. ' ' : ' ' '
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Financial assets at amortised cost staging analysis

Stagg 2
Not past <=30days >30days o
As at 31 December 2021 Stage1 - due pastdue pastdue =~ Total - Stage3 © Total -
Gross exposure ) ' ' N _
Cash and cash equivalents 846,286 — — — — — 846,286
Loans and other 41453131 — . — - — 41453131
receivables ) . ) _ o .
Other financial assets 164,036 — o — — — 164,036
Total ' ) 42,463,453 A — — — . —. '— 42,463,453
impairment Allowance ) ' ' .
Cash and cash equivalents ' - — - - L= = —_
Loans and other . S ,
receivables ‘ (10) - — - — — (10)
Total , (10) - — — — e (10)
Net exposure A ' ‘
Cash and cash equivalents 846,286 — : — = — = 846,286
Loans and other : C ‘ ) '
receivables 41,453,121 - - - ' — - 41,453,121
~_Other financial assets 164,036 — P — L — — — 164,036
Total 42,463,443 — . — — = — 42,463,443
. Stage 2
: Notpast <=30days >30days : ' :
As at 31 December 2020 Stage 1 . due . pastdue pastdue Total ~ Stage3 Total
“ Gross exposure ) B . _ : ] .
Cash and cash equivalents 864,070 — = - — — — 864,070
Loans and other. L o _ ' - N
receivables A 38.058,100 = — — - = 38,058,100
Other financial assets : 121,467 —_ — — — — 121,467 -
Total 39043637 @ — - — - —  — 39,043,637
Impairment Allowance i
Cash and cash equivalents R ] — — .—_ — = —
“Loans and other R _ 4 :
receivables ez — T - - .7 (162)
Totabl .~ . . 162y — — - - — . (162)
Net exposure - ’ . )
Cash and cash equivalents 864,070 - — - — — — 864,070
Loans-and other ‘ ‘ : o ‘
" receivables 38,057,938 = ' — — E — - 38,057,938
- Other financial assets 121,467 — — e — — 121,467

Total 39043475 — - = = - — 39043475
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Financial assets at amortlsgd cost —(a) Movement in gross exposure and impairment allowance

STAGE1 . STAGE 2 STAGE 3 Total
: Impairment Lo Impairment . Impairment Impairment
£000 i . "Exposure allowance Exposure . aliowance Exposure allowance Exposure allowance
Balance as at l_lanuar)"‘ZOZ‘l : 39,043,637 .(162) . —_ - - —_ 39,043,637 (162)
New financial assets originated or purchased 18,463,234 (8) - . — — — 18,463,234 (8)
" Net drawdowns/repayments/risk parameter changes (15,043,418) 159 .- —_ — — (15,043,418) 159
. Other movements - T = = — — = 1
Asset derecognised due to disposals ' : - — - — — — — —
Balance as at 31 December 2021 ) 42,463,453 (16) e i — — — 42,463,453 (10)
. Reconciliation of ECL movement to lmparrment ’
release for the period
ECL movement excluding assets derecogmsed due to . .
disposals and write-off . C 5 - — 151
Income statement release for the period 151 ’ . 151
: STAGE 1 " _STAGE2 STAGE 3 Total
Impairment ‘Impairment . Impairment . " Impairment
- Exposure allowance Exposure llow e Exp il e Exposnire allowance
Balance as at 1 January 2020 34,359,226 (154) — : — — — 34,359,226 (154)-
New financial assets originated or purchased - 20,004,889 N - — . — - — 20,004,889 7
Net drawdowis/repayments/risk parameter changes C - — - — — — — —
' Other movements ; . - () — - — - .- Q)]
Asset derecognised due to disposals " (15,320,478) L — — - — — - (15,320,478) —
- Balance as at 31 December 2020 39,043,637 (162) = — — - 39,043,637 {162)
Reconciliation of ECL movement to impairment
(charge) for the period .
ECL movemient excluding assets derecognised due to 3 ¢ .
-disposals and write-off . 7 (7) : — — 0
Income sta {charge) for the period (7) ‘ (7}
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As at 31 December 2021 Satisfactory Higher risk " Total
Cash and cash equivalents 822,894 -23,348 44 846,286
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 128,429 263,903 3,557 395,889
Derivative financial assets 12,049,332 40,187 — " 12,089,519
Loans and other receivables 40,578,068 871,856 3,197 41,453,121
Other financial assets 163,975 ‘ 61 — 164,036
. Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 54,128,791 - 3,873,482 58,002,273
Total Assets 107,871,489 5,072,837 6,798 - 112,951,124 .
. As at 31 December 2020 Strong Satisfactory Higher risk Total
Cash‘and ¢ash equivalents 860,391 3,633 .46 864,07.0
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 225,659 185,646 2,244 413,549
Derivative financial assets 8,877,584 23,085 — 8,900,669
Loans and other receivables 36,970,967 .- 1,085,991 980 38,057,938
Other financial assets 4 121,391 76 — 121,467
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 44,932,741 1,694,723 — 46,627,464 .
91,988,733 2.993,1 54 3;270 94,985,157

B'af'clays Capital Securities Limited .

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021

- Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand

(b) Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired

Strong

_ Total Assets

Strong - there is a very high likelihood of the asset being recovered.in full.

Satisfactory = whilst there is a high likelihood that the asset will be recovered and therefore of no cause for

concern to the Company, the asset may not be collateralized or may relate to unsecured loans.

Higher risk — there is concern over the obligor's ability to make payments when due. However, these have not
yet converted to actual dehnquency The borrower or counterparty is continuing to make payment when due

Maximum Exposure to Credit risk

- and is expected to settle all outstanding principal and interest.

‘Whilst the Compan)'l’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying value of the assets; in most cases the
likely exposure is far less due to offsetting collateral, other netting and set off to mitigate the Company’s

113,789,262

exposure.

‘ _ -Maximum.  Netting and - ‘
As at 31 December 2021 " Exposure - set-off . Collateral Net Exposure
Cash and cash equivalents 846,286 - — 846,286
Trading portfolio assets (debt) 395,889 = — 395,889
Derivative financialinstruments 12,089,519  (11,904,305) — 185,214
Loans and other receivables 41,453,121 (38,962,677) — 2,490,444

 Other financial assets 164,036 — — 164,036
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 58,002,273 (502,790) (56,981,590) 517,893
Total on-balance sheet ' 112,951,124  (51,369,772) (56,981,590) 4,599,762
Off-balance sheet:

Undrawn commitments 838,138 — —_ 838,138
Total , (51,369,772) (56,981,590) 5,437,900
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31. Liquidity risk

Liquidity Risk Management

Maximum ° Netting and

As at 31 December 2020 Exposure set-off Collateral Net Exposure
Cash and cash equivalents © 864,070 - - © 864,070
‘Trading portfolio assets (debt) -413,549 —_ — 413,549
Derivative financial instruments 8,900,669 - (8,898,349) — 2,320
Loans and other receivables . 38,4057,938 (31,082,444) — 6,975,494 :
‘Other fi nanC|aI assets ‘ 121,467 — — 121,467
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 46,627,464 Q ,067,2(58) . (45,1 31,439) 428,817
Total on-balance sheet 94,985,157 . (41,048,001) (45,131,439) 8,805,717
Off-balance sheet:

- Undrawn commitments 649,022 - . = 649,022
Total 95,634,179 (41,048,001) (45,131,439) 9,454,739

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company's cash and committed facilities may be insufficient to meet its debts
as they fall due. The Company has the financial support of the parent undértaking BBPLC, it also maintains
banking facilities with BBPLC. These facilities are designed to ensure the Company has sufficient available -
resources to meetiits payments obligations as they fall due or, although solvent, only being able to meet these

obligations at excessive cost. Addltlonally, resultlng nn the risk of the Company not meeting its regulatory

liquidity requwements

BPLC has a comprehensive Liquidity Risk Management Framework (the Liquidity Framework) for managing
the Barclays Group’é liquidity risk. The Liquidity Framework is delivered via a combination of policy formation,
review and governance, analysis, stress testing, limit setting and monitoring. The Company maintains a
mixture of long term and short term committed facilities, including financial support from the parent, BBPLC,
that are designed to ensure the Company has sufficient available funds for operations.
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Contractual maturity of financial assets and liabilities

. Over three .
Over three- . Oversix Overone year years but Over five
Not more  months but months but  but not more not more Years but not
. than three  not more than not more than than three than five more than Over ten
As at 31 December 2021 On demand months six months one year years . years ten years years Total
Assets '
Cash and cash equivalents 846,286 - - - - - . — - 846,286
- Trading portfolio assets 33,085,375 _ —_ —_— —_ —_ . — - 33,085,375
Derivative financial assets ) ’ 12,089,519 —_ —_ — — —_— - — 12,089,519
Loans and other receivables 4,249,411 " 36,669,636 378,298 106,205 49,57 = - - 41,453,121
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value — 57,165,560 16,109 14217 . mgi3 517157 49,517 —° 58,002,273
Other financial assets — 164036 .- — — — — - 164,036
Total Assets . 50,270,591 93,999,232 394,407 248,322 161,384 517,157 49,517 — 145,640,610
: : Over three ot
Over three Oversix Over one year years but Over five
Not more months but months but  but not more not more years but not
‘ . than three: not more than  not more than than three thanfive  morethan Over ten
As at 31 December 2021 On demand ‘months six months one year years . years ten years ) years Total
Liabilities . .
Tu%dlng portfolio liabilities (17,599,352) — - — — — —_ — (17.599,352)
Derivative financial liabilities (12,179,860) . — - — — — — -~ (12,179,860)
Repurchase agreements R —_ - — (7,356,833) —, . — —  (7,356,833)
Borrowings (14,727,751)  (33,836,045) (3,446,211) (5,530,596) (2431,577) © - — . (300,000) — (60,272,180)
Financial fiabilities mandatorily at fair - T et
value — . (45071,842) (570,020) (33,586) (150,066) (190,662) (168,354) (46,184,530)
Other financial liabilities (324,956) - - - - - — . (324956)
Total Liabilities (44,506,963) (79,232,843)  (4,016,231) {5,564,182)  (9,938,476) (190,662) (468,354) — (143;917.711)
Liquidity excess/(gap) 5,763,628 14,766,389 (3,621,824) (5,315,860) (9,777,092) 326,495 (418,837) — 1,722,899
Cumulative liquidity excess 20,530,017 16,908,193- 11,592,333 1,815,241 241,736 - 1,722,899 1,722,899

5,763,628

76



DocuSign Envelope 1D: B3289035-C4F3-4371-9072-1A583C2FD7E7

" Barclays Capital Securities Limited ‘ ' : .
. Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021+
Figures in Pounds Sterling thousand - ) :

Over ihree

. Over three Oversix Overone year years but " Over five
Not more  months but months but  but not more not more Years but not
: than three not morethan notmorethan - than three than five morethan Overten = .
As at 31 December 2020 On demand months six months one year years years ten years years Total
Assets ’ ) . . ]
Cash and cash equivalents © 864,070. [ - - — - R — 864,070
Trading portfolio assets ) 21,126,344 - . - : . - . R —  21126,344 -
Derivative financial assets ’ 8,900,669 - — — = - — —_ - 8,900,669
Loans and other receivables 938,878  37,049315. 19,659 ) 268 - 49,819 . — — . 38,057,939
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value — . 45,495,613 144,507 .685,156 164,621 53139 . 83534 894 46,627,464
Other financial assets ) . — 121,467 - — - - — (— 121,467
Total Assets : ) 31,829,961 82,666,395 164,166 685,424 164,621 102,958 83,534 894 115,697,953
) Over three Oversix Over oneyear  Overthree Over five,
Notmore  months but months but not  but not more years but not years but not
: . than three not morethan more than one thanthree . morethan  morethan Overten
As at 31 December 2020 - - Ondemand months " six months year years five years. ten years years ., Total
Liabilities ) i . ' i
Trading portfolio liabilities (14,181,348) - —_ . — —_ — — (14,181,348)
Derivative financial liabilities (9,413,649) C - . — - —_ —_ - (9,413,649)
Reourchase aareements - - : — - - (8.140.936) - - (8.140.936)
* Borrowings (6,070,679)  (351136,098) (105,738) © (84725) . - (49,813) (300,000) (41,747,053)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair . ) .
value —  (37,266,730) (1,790,595) . (130,451) (756,434) (167,994) (425,661) (894) (40,538,759)-
Other financial liabilities — (251,945) — T - — o R . (251,945)
Total Liabilities (29,665,676) (72,654,773)  (1,896,333) (215,176) (8,897,370) (217,807) {725,661) (894) (114,273,690)
Liquidity excess/(gap) : 2,164,285 10,011,622 (1,732,167) 470,248 (8,732,749) (114,849) (642,127) = 1,424,263
Cumulative liquidity excess 2,164,285 12,175,907 10,443,740 10,913,988 2,181,239 2,066,390 . 1,424,263 1,424,263 .
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The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Company under financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of all financial liabilities (i.e. nominal values); whereas the Company manages the inherent liquidity
risk based on discounted expected cash inflows. The balance in the below table does not agree directly to the balances in the balance sheet as the table incorporates
all cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, related to both principal as well as those associated with all future coubon payments. Derivative financial instruments held )
fortf'ading and trading portfolio‘liabilvities are included in the on demand column at their fair value.

Contractual undiscounted cash ﬂow§

Over three Over six’ . ..
. months but " months but Overone:  Over three Over five
Not more not more . not more year but not years but not years but not
. = than three than six than one more than more than more than Over ten
As at 31 December 2021 On demand - months months year __three years five years ten years years Total
Liabilities - o - ) .
Trading portfolio liabilities "(17.599,352) - - — — — - — — (17.599,352)
Derivative financial liabilities (12,179,860} - — - — — — — - (12,179,860)
Repurchase-agreements — — -—  (7.521,592) — - — (7.521,592)°
Borrowings (14,722,751)  {(33,837.211)  (3,439,576)  (5.536,326)  (2,477.464) — (333,555) (60,351,883)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair ~ N N '
value c . — (45,072,499) (568,695) (33,784) (154,020) (200,868) (181,387) — (46,211,253)
Other financial liabilities . - (324,956) - - - - - - (324,956)
Total Liabilities (44,506,963) (79,234,666)  (4,008,271) (5,570,110) (10,153,076) (200,868) (514,942) — . (144,188,896)
Liquidity excess/(gap) 5763628 - 14,764,566 (3.613,864)  (5,321,788)  (9,991,692) 316,289 (465,425) — 1,451,714
Cumulative liquidity excess 5,763,628 20,528,194 16,914,330 11,592,542 1,600,850 - 1,917,139 1,451,714 1,451,714
R - N .
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Over three

Over six

Y . . .
. months but  months but Overone  Overthree Over five
¢ Not more not more not more year butnot years but not years butnot . .
R than three “than six than one more than more than more than Over
As at 31 December 2020 On demand months months year _ three years five years ten years ten years Total
Liabilities ! . : » .
Trading portfolio Ila_bllities; © (14,181,348) — — — — — — —  (14,181,348)
Derivative financial liabilities . (9,413,649) ° — T = - — - — —  (9,413,649)
.Repurchase agreements . o ' —_ —  (8)143,989) — — —  (8,143989)
Borrowings o (6,070,679)  (35,134,621) (105,442) (84742) - (50,086) (307,909) —  (41,753,479)
. Financial liabilities mandatorily at fair . . ’ o .
value N — (37,257,805) . (1,789,223) (130,109) ~ (761,096) (168,728) (430,467) (1,176) (40,538,604)
Other financial liabilities — (251,945) — — - — : - L —- (251,945)
Total liabilities (29,665,676) (72,644,371)  (1,894,665)  (214,851) (8,905,085) (218,814) (738.376) (1,176) (114,283,014)
Liquidity excess/(gap) 2,164,285 10,022,024 (1,730,499) 470,573 ° (8,740,464) (115,856) . (654,842) (282) 1,414,939
Cumulative liquidity excess . 2164285 12,186,309 10,455,810 10,926 383 2,185919 2,070,063 1415221 1,414,939 -
>
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32.  Assets pledged

Assets are pledged a's,co|lateral to secure liabilities under repurchaee agreements, securitisations-and stock
* lending arrangements or as collateral posted against derivative margin requirements. The carrying amount
~ of financial assets pledged as collateral for liabilities as at 31 December 2021 is.£10,406m (2020: £14,321rn).

Collateral held as secdrity for assets

Under certain transactions, including reverse repurchase agreements and stock borrowing transactions, the
Company is allowed to resell or re-pledge the collateral held. The fair value at the balance sheet date. of
collateral accepted and re-pledged to others'was as follows: .

2021 2020

~_Fairvalue of securities accepted as collateral © - . 154,189,384 151,678,557
Of which fair value of securities re-pledged/transferred to others 107,075,444 129,625,116

33. Capital management

The below table provides details of the regulatory capital resources managed by the Company. .

, . 2021 2020 -
Common Eouity Tier 1 capital instruments . : g 1,491,730 1,186,563
Common Equity Tier 1 deductions (102,199) (56,966)
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ’ : ) . 1,389,531 1,129,597
- Additional Tier 1 capital L : o 200,000 200,000
Tier 1 capital ! _ o o 1,589,531 1,329,597
Tier 2 capital .~ - ' : 300,000 301,661
Total Own Funds . - - : L - ' 1,889,531 1,631,258

To help meet regulatory provisions as prescribed by the PRA affectmg capital adequacy and large exposures
reporting, the Company has the followmg in pIace as at 31 Dec 2021:

- A contractual guarantee of £1bn (2020: £1bn) from BBPLC to cover credit exposures arising from
counterparty credit risk. The guarantee covers large exposures which are in excess of 23% of the
Company’s eligible capital relevant for limits to large exposures. This guarantee will remain in effect until
terminated by either the benefi C|ary or the guarantor by prowdlng 30 busmess days’ notlce in writing to

" the other party. . : ‘ . . ) ‘

- A contractual guarantee of £1bn (2020: £1bn) from BBPLC to cover credit exposures arising from
counterparty credit risk ranked by risk weighted amount. The guarantee limit can be amended from time
to time with agreemerit between both parties. This guarahtee will remain in effect until terminated either
by the beneficiary or guarantor by providing 30 business days’ notice in wrfting to the ot.herjparty.

- Acontractual guarantee from BBPLC to cover securiﬁes financing transactions to non-Core internal large
"exposures which are in excess of the Company’s eligible capital relevant for limits to large exposures in
accordance with Article 4(1)(71) (b) and Article 494 of the CRR. The guarantee limit is set to £1 and carl
be amended from time to time with agreement from both parties. The main exposures to which this
guarantee relates to are Barclays Capltal Inc, Barclays Securities lapan Limited and Barclays Bank Ireland

. 80 .
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"PLC. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated either by the beneficiary or. guarantvor by
providing 30 business days’ notice in writing to the other party. !

- A contractual guarantee of £1.5bn (20205 £1.5bn.): from BBPLC to cover exposure with Bé'rclays Capital
Luxembourg Sarl for stock loan transactions. This guarantee will remain in effect until terminated by the
guarantor by providing 30 business days’ notice in writing to the benefitiary. ‘ '

The above guarantee limit amounts can be amended from time to time with agreement between both parties.

- ‘FIoating rate ber’petual subordinated write down securities (AT1 securities) issued for £200m on
22 August 2019, which are included within additional Tier 1 capital; '

- Subordinéteq callable notes .of £150m issued on 22 August 2019 and £150m issued on
19 December 2019, which are included within Tier 2 capital. : )

M
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34.' Related party transactions -

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant

influence over the party in making financial or operational decisions, or one party controls both.

The definition of related parties includes parent company, ultimate parent company, subsidiary, associated
and joint venture companies, as well as the Company’s key management which includes its Directors.
Particulars of transactions, and the balances outstanding at the year end, are disclosed in the tables below.
‘The Company’s related party transactions disclosed on the tables below'are with the parent company BBPLC

and fellow subsidiaries of BPLC Group. -

. Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended Fellow o
31 December 2021 ' o : Parent Subsidiaries Total
Net interest income/(expense) (8,7,68) —_ (8,768) -
Net fee and commission income/(expense) . (82,096) — (82,096)
Net trading income/(expense) (471 ,563) 15,979 (455,584)
Operating expense T (73,112) (183,355) (256,467)
Impairment 151 — 151
Total Comprehensive Income (635,388) (167,376) . (802,764)

. Fellow
Statement of financial position as of 31-December 2021 - Parent Subsidiaries _Total
Assets 4 '
Cash and cash equivalents. - 160,587 — 160,587

" Derivative financial instfuments _ 11,757,730 269,002 12,026,732

. Loans and other receivables' ! 30,837,966 5,679,187 36,517,153
Other assets ' : T 696 5,038 5,734
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value 47,863,228 4,200,322 -52,063,550
Investment in subsidiaries — e . —
Total Assets 90,620,207 10,153,549 ' 100,773,756
Liabilities , S .

Derivative financial instruments (11,572,515) A (502,836) (12,075,351)
Repurchase agreements R (7,356,833) (7,356,833)
Borrowings (49,683,166) '(5476,101)  (55,159,267)
Other liabilities - (39,251) (19,258) (58,509)
Financial liabilities mandatorily at fanr value (36,275,533) (5,109,393) _ (41,384,926)
Total Liabilities (97,570,465) (18,464,421) (116,034,886)
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Statement of Comprehensnve Income for the year ended

Fellow
31 December 2020 Parent  Subsidiaries Total
Net interest income/(expense) (9,439) — (9,439)
Net fee and commission income/(expense) . (120,563) — (120,563)
Net trading income/(expense) ' (213,811) 431 (213,380)
- Operating expense (136,393) (81,513) - (217,906)
Impairment (7) — )
Total Comprehensive Income (480,213) (81,082) (561,295)
_ , Fellow

Statement of financial position as of 31 December 2020 Parent Subsidiaries Total
Assets ‘ o '

Cash and cash equivalents ) 111,364 — 111,364
Derivative financial instruments . 8,797,253 80,331 8,877,584
Loans and other receivables 25,496,240 6,570,023 32,066,263
Other assets 105 — 105
Financial assets mandatorlly at fair vaIue 31974793~ 6,530,935 - 38,505,728
Investment in subsidiaries o — = —
Total Assets 66,379,755 13,181,289 79,561,044
Liabilities : .
Derivative financial instruments ‘ (8,738,948) . (525,952)  (9,264,900) °
Repurchase agreements . —  (8,140,936)  (8,140,936):
Borrowings : (29,898,316)  (6,766,854)  (36,665,170)
Other liabilities (36,831) (17,066) (53,897).
Financial liabilities mandatonly at falr value (31,416,896) (4,065,038)  (35,481,934)
Total Liabilities (70,090,991) (19,515,846) (89,606,837)

_Principal transactions income from related party transactions is not disclosed above as the Company's
activities are managed on a portfoho basis comprising of related party, external client and hedging
transactions. ! : -

‘Operatin'g expenses to fellow subsidiaries above includes cost of services of £129m (2020: £48m) provided
. by Barclays Execution Services Limited, the BPLC Group-wide service company.

BBPLC has provided to a limited number of third parties, guarantees on the performance of the Cbmpany in -
relation to obligations associated with prime brokerage and stock lending business activities.

Refer to Note 8 for details on remuneration of Key Management Personnel.

.35. Legal and regulatory matters

The financial reporting of legal and regulatory challenges involves a significant degree. of judgement and is
complex. Identifying whether a present obligation exists and estimating the probability, timing, nature and '
quantUm of the outflows that may arise from past events requires judgements to be made based on the
specific facts and circumstances relating to individual events and often requires specialist professional advice.
When matters are at an early stage, accounting judgements.and estimates can be difficult because of the
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hlgh degree of uncertainty mvolved Management continues to monitor matters as they develop to re-

' evaluate on an ongoing basis whether provisions should be recognlsed however there can remain a wide
vrange of possible outcomes and uncertainties, particularly in relation to legal, competition and regulatory
matters, and as a result it is often not practicable to make meaningful estimates even when matters are at a
‘more advanced stage. The Company has not disclosed an estimate of the*potential financial effect of
contingent liabilities where it is not currently practicable to do so.

36. Contingents and commitmenté

Contingent liabilities are possible’ obligations whose existence will be conﬁrmed only by uncertain future
events, and present obligations where the transfer of economic resources.is uncertain or cannot be rellably )
measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognlsed on the balance sheet but are dlsclosed unless the outflow
of economic resources is remote

The following table summanses the nominal pnncrpal amount of contingent |Iabl|ltl€S and commltments
whlch are not recorded on balance sheet.

| B | . il o 2021 2020
Undrawn commitments 4 L L . 838138 649,022

Undrawn Commitments for the year include a Committed Margin Agreement with Prime Brokerage cliénts '~

© for £838m (2020: £649m). Apart from this the Company is also part of a DoLSub agreement wuth BBPLC
" which may give rise to contingent liabilities albeit not quantlﬁable :

37. Interest rate benchmark reform

The Company’s exposure to rates subject to benchmark interest rate reform ha§ been predominantly to GBP,
EUR and USD LIBOR and EONIA. The exposures of the Company are ma]orly with its parent BBPLC and other
group entities. : :

" How the Company is managing the transition to alternative benchmark rates

The Company's exposures have been managed actlvely as part of Barclays Group wude LIBOR Transutuon
Programme. '

Approaches to transition exposure expiring post the expected end dates for LIBOR vary by product and nature -
of counterparty. The company has’ actively 'engaged with the counterparties- to transition or include
appropriate fallback provisions and transition mechanisms in its floating rate assets and liabilities with
maturities after 2021, when relevant IBORs excluding USD LIBOR ceased to be published. The fallback will -
provide the relevant replacement rate. In the case of the ISDA Protocol it is the RFR plus a credit adjusted
‘spread that should be used post cessation or pre-cessation of the relevant IBOR. For the derivative populatlon _
adherence to the ISDA IBOR Fallbacks Protocol has provided Barclays with an efficient méchanism to amend .
outstanding trades to incorporate faIIbacks Beyond the ISDA IBOR Fa|lbacks Protocol other options have
included termlnatlng or bilaterally agreemg new terms with counterpartles
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DUring 2021, the Company.as part of the Group's transition programme, delivered technology and

" business process changes required for LIBOR cessation to support transition of legacy contracts . Any

incremental Technology or Business Process changes required to support USD LIBOR cessation will be
delivered ahead of 30 June 2023. Majority of the Company’s exposures have moved to RFRs or other °
appropriate other rates such as fixed rates or Bank of England base rates. This has been achieved through
bilateral negotiation of contracts with clients, including the use of appropriate fall-back provisions which
became effective post 31 December 2021, however, note that the switch onto the RFR may not take place
until next reset post 31 December 2021 and SO exposures may still be reported as LIBOR.

Risks to.which the Company is exposed as a result of the transition

- The Company does not expect material changes to its risk management approach and strategy as a result of

interest rate benchmark reform.

The following table summarises the significant exposures impacted by interest rate benchmark reform:

, : . . : _ . GBP usD
“As at 31 December 2021 ‘ EONIA . LIBOR LIBOR Otherss  ~  Total
'Non-derivative financial assets and ' '
Tliabilities ) . .
Financial ‘assets . 235131 A 253,812 650 489,593
Financial liabilities . - s " (2,147). (718,000) (550,107) (732) © (1,270,986) -
- Equity . A . ' . ' :
Other-equity instruments : SR . '(200,000) ) (200,000)

~ 2Others comprise JPY, EUR and CHF‘ LIBOR.

The table above represents the exposures to mterest rate benchmark reform Wthh have yet to transition.
The exposure disclosed is for positions with contractual maturities after 31 December 2021 (apart from USD,
which'is for maturities after 30 June 2023). Trades with exposures to other IBORs whose respective cessation
dates is in the future and mature before that date have been excluded. Balances reported at amortised cost
are disclosed at their gross carrying value and do not include any expected credit losses that may be held
against them.

: The foIIowmg table represents the derivative exposures to interest rate benchmark reform, which have yet to

. transition:
Asat31’ B ~ GBP USD - CHF EUR JPY o
December 2021 EONIA2 LIBOR . LIBOR LIBOR . LIBOR LIBOR - SOR _ Total

Notional contract. - , : , '
. amount? .+ 10334558 8,130,989 4,702,657 2,368,861 1,899,994 1,758,445 159,766 29,355,270°

2 Derivative contract exposures are with-Barclays Group entities. The exposures above have fallbacks in place for alternate interest rates,
except for contracts of notional value £406m as of 31 December.2021 which are without appropriate fall-back clause. Fallbacks here are
defined as any mechanism involving a ‘switch’ or ‘hardwire’ or a contractual agreement to transition to an automatically selected rate.

S

The exposure disclosed is for positions with contractual maturities after 31 December 2021 {apart from USD,

~ whichis for maturities after 30 June 2023). Trades wrth exposures to other IBORs whose respective cessation

dates is in the future and mature before that date have been excluded. Denvatlves are reported by using the
notional contract amount ’
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' 38. Parent undertaking and ultimate holding compé;n‘y
The Company is a subsidiary undertaking of BPLC, which is the ultlmate parent company mcorporated in the
United Kingdom, which is also the ultimate controllrng party.

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by BPLC. The smallest
group in which they are consolidated is that héaded by BBPLC. Both companies are incorporated in the United
. Kingdom and regrstered in England. : :

The consohdated financial statements of these groups are available to the public from Barclays Corporate ’
Secretariat, 1  Churchill  Place. London E14 5HP. This information . is avarIabIe at:

https:// home barclays/i investor-relations/ regorts -and-events/annual-reports/.. ’
39. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

The contractual guarantee from BBPLC to the 'Company.which covers credit exposures ‘arising from
Counterparty Credit risk ranked by risk weighted amount, with a limit of £1bn as of 31 December 2021 had
been increased to £2.5bn on 28 March 2022, as part of the capital management actions for the entity.

In the 27 October 2021 UK Budget, the Chancellor confirmed a decrease in the bank surcharge from the ‘
current 8% to 3% from April 2023. This change was substantively enacted postyear end on 2.February 2022.

As a result the effective tax rate wilk reduce to 27.7% for the year 2023 and to 28. 0% for the year 2024 and
onwards. This erI also impact the deferred tax balances in the subsequent years, however the |mpact |s not :
material.

* There are no other material everits aft,er 31 December 2021 and before adoption of the financial statements
~ which need to be disclosed in the financial statements. o '
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